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ndependent Auditors Repart

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited (the “Company”) which
comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the standalone statement of profit and loss
(including other comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes in equity and standalone statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and its profit and other comprehensive income, changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion 3

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters .

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment , were of most significance in our audit of
the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
3 separate opinion on these matters.
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| Refer note 3 (i) to standalone financial statements

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

CaratLane Trading Private Limited

- The key audit matter
The Company recognises revenue when the control
of goods being sold is transferred to the customer.
A substantial part of Company’s revenue relates to
jewelry which involves large number of individual
sales contracts having varied contractual terms
with retail customers, online customers and

: franchisees.

i The Company and its external stakeholders focus |

- on revenue as one of the key performance
- indicators, this increases the risk of misstatement
of the timing and existence of revenue recognized.

In view of the above we have identified revenue |

recognition as a key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

in view of the significance of the matter, we applied the

| following audit procedures in this area, among others, to

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence:

1. Assessed the appropriateness of the accounting policy
for revenue recognition as per relevant accounting
standard.

2. We evaluated the design and imptementation of key
internal  financial controls and their operating
effectiveness with respect to revenue recognition
transactions selected on a sample basis. These included
general IT controls and key application controls over the
IT systems which govern revenue recognition, including
access controls, controls over program changes.

3.We perused selected samples of key contracts with
customers, distributors and franchisees to understand
terms and conditions particularly relating to acceptance

| of goods.

4.We performed substantive testing of online and retail

sales by selecting samples of sales made at the retail

outlets using statistical sampling and tested the
underlying documents, which included tracing sales to
collection reports and bank statements. For franchisee
sales {other than retail sales), we performed substantive
testing using statistical sampling and tested the
underlying documentation including verification of
invoices and collections thereon.

5.We tested selected samples of sales transactions made
immediately pre and post year end, agreed the period of

revenue recognition to the underlying documents.

6.We scrutinised manual journals posted to revenue to
identify unusual items.
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Refer note 3 (vi} to standalone financial statements

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

CaratlLane Trading Private Limited

The key audit matter

éThe Company’s inventories primarily comprise

éjewelry (gold, diamonds, gemstones etc.). The

Company holds inventory at various locations

| including factories, stores (retail outlets} and third
party locations.

There is a significant risk of loss of inventory given
| the high value and nature of the inventory
| involved.

In view of the above, we have identified existence
of physical inventories as a key audit matter.

Other Information’

| interfaces between different systems.

How the matter was addressed in our audit
In view of the significance of the matter we applied the
following audit procedures in this area, among others, to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence:

1.We evaluated the design, implementation and tested
the operating effectiveness of key controls that the
Company has in relation to safeguarding and physical
verification of inventories including the appropriateness
of the Company’s standard operating procedures for
conducting, recording reconciling  physical
verification of inventories and tested the implementation
thereof.

and

2.We evaluated the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of general IT controls and key
application controls over the Company’s IT systems
including those relating to recording of inventory
quantities on occurrence of each transaction, including
controls, controls program changes,

access over

3.For the sampled locations, we attended physical
verification of stocks conducted by the Company and
performed roll-forward and roll-back procedures as at
the year end, where applicable. We also performed
surprise stock counts at selected stores on a sample basis.
We also checked on a sample basis reconciliation of |
inventories as per physical inventory verification and
book records.

4.For samples selected using statistical sampling, we
obtained independent confirmations of inventories held
with third parties.

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s directors' report, but does not include the

financial statements and auditor’s report(s) thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

CaratLane Trading Private Limited

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Sﬁfémjéﬁﬁ. '

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
{Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

' Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

®  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3){i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting in preparation of standalone financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

CaratLane Trading Private Limited

required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

®  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

| 'i!eport on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements.

1. Asrequired by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 {“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

c. The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss {including other
comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone statement of
cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2023 on its financial position
in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 35 to the standalone financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

CaratlLane Trading Private Limited

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note
40 (vii) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
{“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note
40 {vili) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i} and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above, contain any material
misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f.  As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company only with
effect from 1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is
not applicable.

C.  With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.
The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are
required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

o)

Arjun Ramesh

Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 218495
Date: 28 April 2023 ICAI UDIN:23218495BGYWBW1419
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

(i} (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and

(ii)

(i)

(c)

(d)

(a)

(b)

(a)

situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property,
Plant and Equipment and Right of Use asset by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in
a phased manner over a period of 3 years. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant
and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where the
Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). Accordingly,
clause 3{i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

The inventory, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties, has been physically verified by
the management during the year.For stocks lying with third parties at the year-end, written
confirmations have been obtained and for goods-in-transit subsequent evidence of receipts has been
linked with inventory records. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and
procedures and coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed
on verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the
aggregate of each class of inventory

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. In our
opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks or financial
institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records
of the Company, the Company has not made investments and not provided any guarantee or security
or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited
liability partnership or any other parties during the year . The Company has granted loan to a Company
during the year, in respect of which requisite information is as below. The Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured, to firms, limited liability partnership and other parties during the year.

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations given to us
the Company has provided loans as below:

2
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

(b)

()

(d)

{e)

(f)

(iv)

{vi)

{vii) (a)

Particulars Loan {Rs. lakhs)

Aggregate amount during the year 1,771

—  Subsidiary

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date
1,998

—  Subsidiary J

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures conducted
by us, in our opinion the investments made, guarantees provided, security given during the year and the
terms and conditions of the grant of loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided
during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, in the case of loans given, the repayment of principal and payment of interest
has been stipulated. There were no amount due for repayment of principal and payment of interest
during the year. Further, the Company has not given any advance in nature of loan to any party during
the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of loans given.
Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any party during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling due during the
year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing
loans given to same parties.Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loan to
any during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee or security
as specified under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”). In respect of the loans given by
the Company, in our opinion the provisions of Section 186 of the Act have been complied with. Further,
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of our records
of the Company, the Company has not made investments and not provided any guarantee or security
specified under Section 186 of the Act.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the
public. Accordingly, clause 3{v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed
the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the products manufactured by it.
Accordingly, clause 3{vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and Value added
tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

{viii)

(ix) (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(x) (a)

(b)

of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State
Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues have been generally regularly
deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues were in
arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Statute /Nature of Amount (Rs. Period to which the Forum where dispute is
the dues lakhs) amount relates pending
Sales Tax/ Value 677 2016-17 High Court
Added Tax

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously
unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowing or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or government authority.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has not
obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix){c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term
purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary as defined under the
Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary
(as defined under the Act).

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3{x}(b) of the Order
is not applicable.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

{xi) (a)

{b)

(c)

{xii)

(xiii)

(xiv) (a)
(b)

(xv)

{xvi) (a)

(xvii)

(xviii)

{xix)

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and
explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we
report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course
of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section {12) of Section
143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

We have taken into consideration the whistie blower complaints received by the Company during the
year while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3{xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with
related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the details
of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, the
Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and
hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi){a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi}(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3{xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given by the management, the group has five CICs which
are registered with Reserve Bank of India and one CIC which is not required to be registered with the
Reserve Bank of India.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial
year

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3{xviii} of
the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly, clauses
3(xx)(a) and 3{xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Q.

Afjun Ramesh

Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 218495
Date: 28 April 2023 ICAI UDIN:23218495BGYWBW 1419
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial statements
of CaratlLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of CaratLane Trading Private
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal contro! stated in the Guidance Note. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards
on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143{10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Page 12 of 13



BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial statements
of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

' Meaning of internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statemen

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

2.

Arjun Ramesh

Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 218495
Date: 28 April 2023 ICAI UDIN:23218495BGYWBW1419
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CaraiLane Trading Private Limited
Standalone balance sheet

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

*Represents amounts less than Rs, 1 lakh

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

g

Arjun Raresh

Partner

Membership No. 218495
Plnce Bengaluru

Date: April 28,2023

Finm registration number: 101248W/ W-100022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

Mitjen P
Mahaging Director
DIN: 01683592
Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 28, 2023

Place: Bengaluru
™% e s, Nl O MY

Chief Financial Officer

ard of Directors of

¢-.' Sacheti

4 L~
/-

- As at As at
Bl i 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5(i) 7,921 2,995
Capital work-in-progress * 5(iii) - 2
Right-of-use assets 6 20,039 7,416
Intangible assets S(ii) 2,755 1,148
Intangible assets under development 5(iv) 717 479
Financial assets
1. Investments 7(1) 109 109
1. Loans receivable 7(it) 1,998 227
ii. Other financial assets 7(iii) 6,614 4,445
Deferred tax assets (net) 8 1,403 5,097
Income tax assets (net) 8 215 1S
Otheer non-current assets 9 3,136 924
44,267 22,957
Current assets
Inventories 10 89,372 53,380
Financial assets
i. Trade receivables 11(1) 3,605 2,051
i Cash and cash equivalents 11if) 506 426
iii. Other bank balances 11¢ii) 178 178
iv. Loan receivables 113v) 523 198
v_Other financial assets 11(v) 4,201 1,486
Other current assets 12 12,873 B,792
111,258 66,511
ISSQIS 89,468
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ’
Equity
Equity share capital 13 667 665
Share application money 1 -
Other equity 14 21,402 11,067
22,070 11,732
Liahilities
Non-current liabilities
Tinancial liabilities
i. Borrowings 15(1) - 219
ifa. Lease liabilities 15(ii) 23,025 10,293
iii. Other financial liabilities 15(iii) 362 312
Other non-current liabilities 16 87 108
Provisions 17 603 074
24,167 11,606
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i Borrowings 18(1) 56,711 18,153
ii. Gold on loan 18(ii) 20,931 23,643
iiia. Lease liabilities 18(iii) 3,317 1,849
iv Trade payables 18(iv)
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro andl small enterprises 3,466 3,970
(b) Total oittstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 15,840 12,925
small enterprises
v Other financial liabilities 18(v) 1,664 1,141
Other current liabilities 19 6,601 4,097
Provisions 20 758 352
109,288 66,130
155,525 89,468
Significant accounting policies 3

shok Kumar Sonthalia

Director
DIN: 03259683
Place: Bengaluru

Dhate: Apnl 28, 2023

Company Secretary
Place: Bengaluru
Date: Apnl 28, 2023
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Standalone statement of profit and loss
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue from operations 21 215,509 125,717
Other income 22 2,177 1,001
Total income (1) 217,686 126,718
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 160,642 93,497
Purchase of stock-in-trade 23 15,784 11,852
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and (35,930) (20,491)
work-in-progress
Eniployee benefits expense 24 13,532 8,951
Finance costs 25 4,658 2,084
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26 4,473 2,653
Other expenses 27 40,564 23356
Total expenses (IT) 203,723 121,902
Profit before tax (I11) [(1)-(1D)] 13.963 4,816
Tax expense (IV)
- Current tax - -
- Deferred tax 8 3,723 (5,057)
Profit after tax (A) [(11D)-(IV)] 10,240 9,873
Other comprehensive income
Jtems that will not be reclassified to the standalone stalement
of profit and loss:
- Remeasurements of employee defined benefit plans 07 (157)
- Income-tax on above 27 40
Items that will be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss:
- Effective portions of gains and loss on designated portion of hedging - 2
instruments in a cash flow hedge
- Income-tax on above - =
‘Total other comprehensive income (B) (80) (115)
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) 10,160 9,758
Earnings per equity share (par value of Rs. 2 per share)
Basic earnings per share 30.75 29.68
Diluted carnings per share 28 30.56 29.48

Significant accounting policies

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
['irm registration number: 101248W/ W-100022

9

Arjun |
Partner
Membership No. 218495
Place: Bengaluru

Daie: April 28,2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

f ._? ) Manoj Bhanawat

( ﬁ CHENNA\ < Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
<\ 600 006 ,:l Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
d;fy_,\ o, Date: April 28, 2023 Date: April 28. 2023

3

41 of the Be/ard of Directors of

rading I’?zate Limited
TN2007 TCO64830) (‘
/

VN
it{un\Padam Sacheti . huwm‘:ﬂia
Menagiht Director
DIN: 01683592

Director
DIN: 03259683
Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 28, 2023

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 28, 2023

&
Ahona Das Gufita
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Standalone statement of cash flow
(All amounts in INR lakhs. unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

A, CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax 13.963 4816
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 4,473 2,653
Allowance for doubtful receivables and bad debts written oft’ - 27
Interest income (82) (9)
Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost (553) (566)
Deferred rental income and rent equalisation (186) (78)
Ciain on sale of investment (net) 3) (33)
Finance cost 4.658 2,084
(Profit)/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (38) (14)
Property, plant and equipment wrtitten oft - 33
Intangible assets wrtitten off 17 -
Employee stock option expense 113 165
Operating profit before working capital changes 22,362 9,078
Change in operating assets and liabilities

(increase)/ decrease in trade receivables (1,554) (1,169)
(imcrease)/ decrease in inventories (35,992) (27,927)
(increase)/ decrease in loans receivable, financial and other assets (9,737) (4,146)
increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities 568 872
increase/ (decrease) in provisions 318 304
increase/ (decrease) in gold on loan and trade payables (302) 21,150
merease! (decrease) in other liabilities 2483 942
Cash genereated (used in) operating activities before taxes (21,854) (896)
Income taxes paid (Net of refunds) (100) (19)
Net cash (outflow) from operating activities (A) (21,954) (915)
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and intangible assets under (8,772) {2.639)
development

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 241 111
Investment in subsidiary - (109)
Loan given during the year to subsidiary (1,771) (227)
Purchase/sale of mutual fund investments, net 3 1,285
Interest received 807 567
(Investment)/redemption in other bank balances - (111)
Lease payments received from sub-leases 1.086 614
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) (8,406) (509)
. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payment towards lease liabilities (principal) (3.444) (2,139)
Payment towards lease liabilities (interest) (1,498) (874)
Repayment trom borrowings (366,645) (70,491)
Proceeds from borrowings 404,984 75,936
Interest pald (3,022) (1,0549)
Proceed from issue of equity shares 65 22
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 30,440 1,355
Net cash (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 80 (69)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year (Refer note 11(ii)) 426 495
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (Refer note 11(ji)) 506 426
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Standalone statement of cash flow
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Debt reconciliation statement in accordance with Ind AS 7

Borrowings

Opening balance 18,372 12,928

Repayment from borrowings (366,645) (70.492)
Proceeds from borrowings 404 984 75,936

Closing balance 56,711 18,372

Reconciliation of Lease liability

Opening balance 12,142 9,497

Payments made during the year (4,942) (3,013)
Non-cash changes 19,142 5.658

Closing balance 26,342 12,142

Significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP

(Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 101248W/ W-100022

4

Arjun Rqmesh

Partner

Membership No 218495
Place: Bengaluru

Date: April 28,2023

=
Jor dnd on behall of the Bo;fn‘d of Directors of
CaratLane Trading Private Limited

ol

n'Padam Sacheti
Managing Director
DIN: 01683592

Place: Bengaluru

Date: April 28,2023

ok Kumar Sonthalia
Director

DIN: 03259683

Place: Bengaluru

Date: April 28,2023

Ahona Das Gu
Company Secretary
Place: Bengaluru

Date: April 28, 2023

anoj Bhanawa
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 28, 2023
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Frall..uno Trading Private Limited
Standalone statement of changes in equity
(Ml amonnts in INR lakhs, unfess otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

As at March 31, 2023

B. Other equity

Particulars Amount
Balance at the April 1,2021 665
Changes in equity share capital during the year 0
As at March 31, 2022 665
Changes in equity share capital during the year 2
667

l

Significant accounting policies

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP
hartered Accountants
ation number: 101248W/ W-100022

Membership No. 218495
Pluce: Bengaluru
[ate: April 28, 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

for and on behalf of the Boa
ing Privat

.%Iqs:h ir Director
DIN: 01683592
Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 28, 2023

o) Bhanawat

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 28, 2023

Reserves and surplus
) ) Other comprehensive income Total
Particulars Securities premium StOCk. options Re(a!ned Cash flow hedge Re-measurement of
outstanding account earnings .
reserve defined benefit obligation
Balance at the April 1, 2021 40,925 718 {40,391) 2 (127) 1,123
Premium on shares issued during the year 53 (32) < w - 21
Profit for the year - - 9,873 - - 9,873
Employee stock option expensc - 165 - - - 165
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of taxes) - - - = (17 (115)
Total comprehensive income for the year 9,873 2 (117) 9,758
| Bulunce as at March 31, 2022 40,978 851 (30,518) (D) (244) 11,067
Bulance as at April 1, 2022 40,978 851 (30,518) 0) (244) 11,067
Premium on shares issued during the year 163 (o - - - 63
Profut for the year - - 10,240 - - 10,240
Emplayee stock option expense - 113 - - - 113
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of Lxes) - - - (80} (80)
Total comprehensive income for the year 10,240 - (80) 10,160
Bal as at March 31, 2023 41,141 864 {20,277) = (326) 24,402
3

Ashok Kumar Sonthalia
Director

DIN: 03259683

Place: Bengaluru

Date: April 28, 2023

Ahonat Das Gupta
Company Secretary
Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 28, 2023




“ CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the standalone financial statements

;-. 1 BACKGROUND
CaratLane Trading Private Limited (the Company) is a listed entity incorporated in India. Till 31 January 2023, the registered office of the address of the Company was 2nd,3rd & 4th

Floor,No,32, Rutland Gate 2nd Street, Khader Nawaz Khan Road, Nugambakkara, Chennai, Tamil Nadu - 600006

4 During the year ended 31 March 2023, with effect from 31 January 2023, the registered address of the Company has been changed to 727, Anna Salai, Pathari RoadThousand Lights,
Chennai TN 600006. The Company is engaged in activities of Manufacturing and trading of jewellery

a The Board of Directors approved the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 and authorised for issue on April 28, 2023

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION

[T]

|; (i) Statement of compliance

The standalone financial statements comply in all material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Hules,
2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and other relevant provision of the act
under going concern asssumption using the historical cost convention on an accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values notified under the
Act & Rules prescribed thereunder. (together hereinafter referred to as ‘Standalone Financial Statements” or ‘financial statements’)

(i) Basis of measurement

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under the lusiorical cost convention except for the following items:
a. Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value

b. Share based payments that are measured at fair value

¢ Net defined benefit liability that are measured at fair value of present value of defined benefit obligations

d. Right of use assets and lease liabilities are measured at fair market value as per INDAS 116

L 4 U

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid {0
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

< <

(i) Use of estimates, assumptions and judgement
The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of]
accounting policies on the reported amount of assets and liabiiities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates, assumptions and judgement arc
based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual result may differ from these estimates

@

Estimates and assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the standalone financial statements is included m
the following notes:

- Note 30 - Leases — whether an arrangement contains a lease

- Note 30 — Lease classification (including the expected general inflation rates)

- Note 21 - Revenue Recognition

/ -
-

<

ﬁl

Assumptions and estimation

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2023 is included in the following
notes:

- Note 5 (1) — Useful life of the Property, plant and equipment;

- Note 5 (ii) — Useful life of the Intangible assets;

- Note 35 — Contingent liabilities and commitments;

- Notes 31 — Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

- Note 30 — Leases - Lease term and incremental borrowing rate

- Note 36 — Fair value measurement of financial instruments

- Note 21 - Revenue recognition

€«

< '@

(iv) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the standalone financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (i the
“functional currency”). The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ("Rs." or "INR"), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency and is
rounded-off to the nearest lakhs except when otherwise indicated

t)’lo

(v) Measurement of fair values

Certain accounting policies and disclosures of the Company require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities

The Company has an established contrcl framework with respect to the measurement of fair values and the valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs anil
valuation adjustments,

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair vaiue hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

- Level I: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable mzrket data (unobservable inputs).

J U

-

When measurnng the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible
If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into a different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in

(] the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input tliat is significant to the entire measurement,
Further information about the assumptions made in the measurmg fair values is included in the following notes:

- Note 36 - financial instruments
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Significant accounting policiec and notes to the standalone financial statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Accounting policies set cut below have been applicd consistently to all pericds presented in these Standalone Financial Statements unless otherwise indicated

(i) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for

those goods or services

Sale of products
Revenuc from the sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the customer

Revenue 1s measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, net of customer incentives, discounts, variable considerations, payments made to customers, other|
similar charges, as specified 1n the contract with the customer, Additionally, revenue excludes taxes collected from customers, which are subsequently remitted to govemimental

authonties.

Contract asscts are recogniscd when therc is excess of revenue eamed over billings on contracts. Contract assets are classificd as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing 1s penting)
when there 15 unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time 1s required, as per contractual terms, Uneamed and deferred revenue (“contract liability™) 1s recognised when
there is billings m excess of revenues. Advances received for services are reported as liabilities until all conditions for revenue recognition arc met.

1Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition

« The Company’s contracts with custoiners could include promises to transfer multiple goods to a customer. The Company asscsses the goods promised 1n a contract and identifies
distinct perfonmance obligations in the contract. {dentification of distinct performance obligation involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer 1o
benefit independently from such deliverables

+ Judgement 1s also required to determine the transaction price for the contract, The transaction price could be cither a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration
with elements such as volume discounts, performance honuscs, price concesstons and incentives. The transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money il the
contract includes a significant financing component. Any consideration payable to the customer 1§ adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is o payment for a distinct good from the
customer. The estimated amount of variable consideration 1s adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal i the amount of
cumulative revenue recogmised will not occur and is reassessed at the end of cach reporting period.

« The Company uses judgement to detennine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance obligation. The Company allocates the transaction price to each performante
obligation on the basis of the relative stand-alone selling price of each distinet good or scrvice promised i the contract. Where standalone selling price 1s not observable, the Company
uses the expected cost plus margn approach to allocate the transaction price to each distinct performance obligation

Interest income is recogmized as it accrues in the standalone statement of profit and loss using effective interest rate method
Commission income 1s generally recognized when the related sale is executed as per the termns of the agreement

The Company has determined that the revenues as disclosed in Note 21 are disaggregated into categories that depict how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and
cash flows are affected by economic factors

i (a) Other income
Franchisee Signing Fees :Franchisee signining fees is recognised based on the franchisce stores opened during the year which varies based on the location. Tt excludes taxes remitted

to the goverment which are reccovered from the Franchisec's, (Note 22)

(ii) Property, plant and equipment
Items of Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price/ acquisition cost, net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than
those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, other incidental expenses and interest o,
borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying property, plant and equipment up to the date the assct is ready for its intended usc

Subscquent expenditure on property, plant and equipment after its purchase / completion is capitalized only if such expenditure results in an increase in the future benefits from such
asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

Advance paid towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at cach balance shect date is disclosed as capital advances under non-current assets

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the standalone statement of profit or loss. Capital work-in-progress comprises the cost off
P )
assets that are not ready for their intended use at the balance shect date

When significant parts of plant and equipment arc required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them scparately based on their specific useful lives Repairs und
maintenance costs are recognised i the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of property, plant and cquipment separately, It the component/ part has a cost which is significant to the total cost
of the property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaiming asset, Leaschold improvements arc amortized over the estimated uscful life
of the assct or the lease period whichever is less.

An item of property, plant and equipmient and any significan! part initially recogmised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future ecanomie benefits arc expeeted [rom its use or
disposal. Gains or losses anising from de-recognition of Property, plant and equipment and intangibile assets are messured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of Praperty, plant and equipment and are recognized in the standalone statement of profit and loss when the Property, plant and equipment is derecogmized
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the standalone financial statements

Depreciation methods, estimated useful life and residual value
Depreciation Is calculated using straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their estimated residual values, over the useful lives of assets which is as follows:

Management estimate of Useful life as per
rAsSetcdlcEony useful life schedule 11
Fumiture and fittings 10 years 10 years
Computer cquipment 3 years 3 years
Computer server 6 years 6 years
Office cquipments S years S years
Jewellery Machine 15 years 15 years
Vehicles 5 years 8 years
Mock jewellery 1 year | ycar
Leaschold improvements 4 years or lease period which ever Lease period

15 lower

(ii) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during the period is proportionally charged.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropnate. Based
on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of uscful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects 10
use these assets. Changes in the expected useful life or the cxpected pattemn of consumption of future cconomic benefits embodied m the asset are considered to modify the amortization
period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting cstimates,

(iii) Intangible assets

(a) Internally gencrated : Research and development

Expenditure on research activities is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Development expenditure s capitalized as part of the cost of the resulting intangible asset only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible, future cconomic benefits are probable, and the Company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use or sell the asset. Otherwise,
it is recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, the assct 1s measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

(h) Amortization
Amortization is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight- linc method, and is included in

depreciation and amortization in Statement of Profit and Loss
The estimated uscful lives are as follows:

Asset Useful life
Computer software 3 years
Caratlane porial 3 years

Aomortization method. useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if approprinte

(iv) Impairment

(a) Financial assets

The Company recogizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through the statement of profit and loss
Expected credit loss is the difference between the contractual cash flows and the cash flows that the entity expects Lo receive, discounted using the cffective interest rate. Loss
allowance for trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial asscts, expected credit Josses are measured at an amount cqual to the [2-month
ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition i which casc those arc measured at lifetime ECL, as required. The amount of expected credit
losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized 1s recognized as i impainnent gain or loss in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

(b) Non-financial assets

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
Intangible asscts and property, plant and cquipment are cvaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes i circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be|
recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (ie. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the valuc-in -use) is determined on an individual asset
basis unless the asset does not gencrate cash flows that are Targely independent of those from other assets, In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which
the asset belongs. [f such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized i the Statement of Profit and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying
value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss 1s reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been @ change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increascd to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying !
amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no unpainnent loss been recogmized for the asset in prior years
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the standalone financial statements

(v) Leases

Company as a lessee
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identificd asset for a period of time in cxchange for consideration. To assess whether &

contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

a_ the contract involves the use of an identified asset;

b. the Company has the right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period of use; and
¢. the Company has the right to direct the use of the assct

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the
relative stand-alone prices of the lease components and the aggregate stand-alonc price of the non-lease components

The Company rccognises right-of-use assct representing its right to use the underlying assct for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset
measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less nny
lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of the costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restonng the|

underlying asset or site on which it is located.

The right-of-usc assct 1s subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation, accumulated impainment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability

The right-of-use asscts is depreciated using the straight-linc method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or uscful life of right-of-usc assct. The estimated useful
lives of rght-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-cf-use asscts arc tested for impainment whenever there is any indication
that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable [mpairment loss, if any, 1s recogniscd in the statement of profit and loss

The leasc liability is initially measured at the present value of the leasc payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or,
if that rate cannot be readily determined, the incremental borrowing rate applicable to the entity within the Company Gencrally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the
discount rate. For leases with rcasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a Icase by lcase basis, may adopt cither the incremental borrowing rale specific to the lcase or the
ineremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a wholc. The lcase payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a
purchase option where the Company 1s reasonably certain to exercisc that option and payments of penalties for tenninating the lease, if the leasc term reflects the lessce exercising an
option to terminate the leasc.
The Company has clected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of all assets that have a lease ternm of 12 months or less and lcases of low-value
asscts. The Company recogmizes the lease payments associated with these lcases as an expensc on a straight-line basis over the leasc term

Company as a lessor

When the Company acts as a lessor at the inception, it determines whether each lease 1s a finance lease or an operating lease
The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lcase tenn. In casc of & finance lcase, finance income is recopmised
over the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s niet investment in the lease. When the Company 1s an intermediate lessor il accounts
for 1ts mterests m the head leasc and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lcase with reference to the right-of-usc asset ansing [rom the head lease, not
with reference to the underlying asset, If a head lease ts a short -term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating)

lease,
[f an arrangement contams a lcase and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115-Revenue to allocate the considcration in the contract

(vi) Inventories
Inventorics [other than quantities of gold for which the price is yet to be determined with the suppliers (Unfixed Gold)] are measured at the Tower of cost and net realizable value The

cost is determined as follows:

(i) Raw materials arc valued at weighted average except solitaires which arc valued at the cost of purchase
(i) Work-in-progress and finished goods (other than gold) are valued at weighted average cost of production
(itf) Traded goods arc valued at weighted average / cost of purchase

(v} Gald is valued pn first-in-first-out basis.
Cost comprises all casts of purchase including duties and taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable by the Company), freight inwards and other cxpenditure directly attributable

{0 acquisition. Work-in-progress and finished goods include appropriate prapartion of overheads.

Unfixed gold is valued at the provisional gold price prevailing on the date of receipt of gold.
Net realizable value represent the estimated selling price for inveatories less estimated cost of completion and costs necessary to make the sale
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the standalone financial statements

(vii) Foreign currency transactions and balances
Forcign exchange transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the respective trarsactions. Exchange differences erising on foreign exehange

transactions settled during the year are recognized in the standalone statement ot profit and loss for the ycar.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in forcign currencies as at the siandalone balance sheet datc are translated at the exchange rates on that date. The resultant exchange
differences are recognized in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary asscts and liabilities which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in foreign currency are translated at an exchange rate that approximates the rates prevalent

on the datc of the transaction.

(viii) Taxation
[ncome tax expense COmPIises current tax expensc and the net change i the deferred tax asset or liability during the year Current and deferred tax are recognized 1 standalane
statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive mcome or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are

also recognized m other comprchensive income or directly in equity, respeetively.

a) Current income tax: Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the mmount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authoritics based on the!
taxable tncome for that year. The tax ratcs and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The Company offsets
current tax assets and current tax liabilitics, where it has legally enforceable right to sct off the recognized amoun's and where it intends cither to settle on a net basis, or to realize the

asset and settle the liability simultaneously

b) Deferred income tax: Deferred mcome tax asscts and iiabilitics are recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax 1s recognized on temporary differences at the balance
sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, except when the defcrred mcome tax anses from the nitial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability 1n a transaction that 1s not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction
The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is prebable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred income tax assets are recognized for carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that there is convincing
cvidence that taxable profit will be available against which the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities arc measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
to taxable income n the years m which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes In tax rates on deferred income tax assets and|
liabilitics is recognized a5 an income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or substantive enactment date

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax

assct to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitics are offset if a legally enforccable nght exists to set off current tax asseis against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the

same taxable entity
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the standalone financial statements

(ix) Employee benefits
i) Short term employee benefits

All ecmployee bencfits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, short-term compensated absences
and incentives etc., are recognized in the standalone statement of profit and loss for the year in which the employee renders the related service

i) Defined contribution plan

All cligible employces receive benefit from provident fund, which is a defincd contribution plan, Both the employee and the Company make monthly contribution to the fund, which is
equal to a specificd percentage of the covered employee's basic salary and including other fixed component not linked to the performance of employees. The Company has no further
obligations under this plan beyond its monthly contributions.

(ix) Employee benefits (continued)

iiii) Post employment benefits

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan covening all cligible employees. The present value of obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on
actuarial valuation carried at the year-cnd using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recogmzes cach period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benelit
entitlement and measures cach unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of the cstimated future cash flows. The discount rate used
for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields on Governiment securities as at the balance sheet date having maturity
periods approximating the term of the rclated obligation. The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan i its balance sheet as an asset or liability. Gains and
losses through re-measurcments of the net defined benefit liability / (asset) arc recognized in other comprehensive mcome. [n accordance with Ind AS, re-mcasurement gains and losses|
an defined benefit plans recognized in OCI are not to be subsequently reclassified to standalone statement of profit and loss. As required under Ind AS compliant Schedule 111, the
Company transfers it immediately (o retained earnings.

The plan provides a lump-sum payment to eligible employees at retirement or on termination of employment based on the satary of the respective employee and the years off
employment with the Company. The gratuity liability is accrued based on an actuarial valuation at the balance sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary.

iv) Compensated absences
Compensated abscnces which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as an
actuarially determined liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the halance sheet date using the projected unit credit method,

(x) Employee stock option expense

The Company measures compensation cost relating to share-based payments using the fair valuation method in accordance with Ind AS 102, Share-Bascd Payment Compensation
expense is amortized over the vesting period of the option on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for each scparately vesting portion of the award as if the award was
in-substance, multiple awards.

The cost of equity-settled transactions 1s determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using the Black-Scholes-Merton Model. The expected term of an option 18
cstimated bascd on the vesting tenm and contractual life of the option. Expected volatility during the expected tenn of the option is based on the lustorical volatility of sumilar
companies, Risk free interest rates are based on the government securities yicld in effect at the time of the grant

The cost of cquity settled transactions is recogmized, together with a corresponding increase in share options outstanding account in equily, over the period i which the performance
and/or service conditions arc fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the company’’s best estimatc of the number of equity instruments that will ultimatcly vest. The income statement expense ot credit for a period represents
the movement in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognized in employee bencfits expense. The dilutive effect of outstanding options 15
reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted camings per share

(xi) Financial instruments
Recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments

Financial asscts and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value, Transaction costs that arc directly attributable to financial assets and liabilities [other than financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)] arc added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or liabilitics, 15 appropriate on initial recogmition.
Transaction costs dircetly attributable to acquisition of financial assets or labilitiecs measured at FVTPL arc recognized immediatcly in the statement of profit and loss

All recognized financial assets arc subsequently measured in their entirety at cither amortized cost or fair value, depending on the classification of financial assets

A) Financial assets

Classification of financial assets:

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified at

(i) Amortized cost

(ii) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

(iii) Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial asscts are nol reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial asscts.

(i) Financial assets carried at amortized cost
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that arc solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at fair valic throwgh comprehensive mcome
A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective is achicved by both collecting]
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give risc on specificd dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Fmancial assets at far value through profit and loss
A financial asset which 1s not classified in any of the above categories arc subsequently fair valued through profit or
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the standalone financial statements

B) Financial liabilities: classification, subsequent measurement and derecognition:

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost

Financial liabilitics are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance shect date,
the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
A financial liabilities which is not classified in any of the above categorics are subsequently carried at fair value through profit or loss

Derecognition

Financial assels
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assct expire, or it transfers the right to receive the contractual cash flows in

a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers asscts recognized on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transfurred
assets, the transferred assets arc not derecognized.

Financial habilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire, The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its
terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value.
The differcnce between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and a new financial liability with modificd terms is recognized in the standalone statement of profit

and loss.

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the standalone balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enfarcenble

right to st off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously

(xii) Derivative financial instruments

a. Fair value hedge
Changges in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recognised 1n statement of profit and loss immediately, together with any changes in the

{air value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. Hedge accounting 1s discontinucd when the Company revokes the hedge relationship, the hedgmg
instrument or hedged item expires or 1s sold, terminated, or exercised or no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,

The Company applies fair value hedge for the gold purchased whose price 15 to be fixed in future. Therefore, there will be no impact of the fluctuation m the price of the gold an the
Company’s profit for the period The Company has designated the trade payables pertaining to gold taken on loan from banks (‘unfixed gold®) as a fair value hedge to the corresponding
gold inventory purchased on loan.

b. Cash flow hedge
The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage risks associated with gold price fluctuations relating to certain highly probable forecasted transactions, The company has

designated derivative financial instruments taken for gold price fluctuations as “cash flow’ hedges relating to highly probable forecasted transactions
The usc of derivative financial instruments is governcd by the Company’s policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written principles on the use of such instruments.

Hedging instruments are initially measured at fair value, and are re-measured at subsequent reporting dates. Changes in the fair value of these derivatives that arc designated and
cffective as hedges of future cash flows are recognised in Other comprehenstve income and accumulated under the heading cash flow hedge reserve and the incffective portion is
recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting, For forecasted transactions, any cumulative gain or loss on the]
hedging instrument recognised in hedging reserve is retained until the forecast transaction occurs upon which it is recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss. If a hedged
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cunulative gain or loss accumulated in hedging reserve is recognised immediately to the statement of profit and loss.
The Company has designated derivative financial instruments taken for gold price fluctuations as “cash flow” hedges relating to highly probable forccasted transactions

(xiii) Provisions and contingent liabilities
a General

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (lcgal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economicy,
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company cxpects some or all of a provision to be 7
reimbursed, the expense relating to a provision is presented in the standalonc statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropnate, the risks specific to the liability When discounting is used, the ncrease m the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost

Produc! warranty costs arc determined based on past experience and provided for in the year of sale.

b. Contingent liabilities
A disclosure for contingent liabilitics is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may protably not requirc an outflow oi resources, When there is a
possible or a present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made
C ()H(’I'(JII_V contracts

Provision for onerous contracts | ¢ contracts where the cxpected unavoidable cost of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be
reeeived under it, are recognized when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying cconomic benefits will be required to settle a present obligation as a result of an abligating
cvent based on a reliable estimate of such obligation
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the standal financial stat ts

(xiv) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash cquivalents comprise of cash on hand, demand deposits with banks and balances with banks. The Company considers all highly liquid investiments with an original
maturity al the date of purchase of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash cquivalents.

(xv) Standalone cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net loss betore tax is adjusted for the cffects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or cxpenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities

of the Company are segregated

(xvi) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs arc interest and other costs incurred in connection with borrowing of funds. The borrowing cost includes interest expense accrued on gold on loan taken from banks.
Borrawing costs attributable to acquisition or construction of an assct which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized as part of the
cost of asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred

(xvii) Earning per share

Basic carning per share 15 computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted loss per share is compuled
by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic loss per share and also the weighted average number of cquity sharey
that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Diluted earnings per share s computed using the weighted-average number of equity and dilutive
cquivalent shares outstanding during the year, using the treasury stock method for options, except where the results would be anti-dilutive. The diluted potential equity shares are
adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair valuc (i.c. the average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are
decmed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date.

(xviii) Segment Reporting

Operating segments arc reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘CODM"). The Board of Dircctors of the Company
assesses the financial performance and position of the Company. The Managing Dircctor has been identified as the CODM

The Company operates in onc segment only i.e. Jewellery The CODM evaluates the Company's performance based on the revenue and operating income from the sale of Jewellery
Accordingly, no additional segment disclosure has been made for the business segment, .

In terms of geographical segment, since the Company operates only in India, there is only onc geographical segment, i.¢. India. Accordingly, no additional disclosure has been made for]
geographical segment information

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”™) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time 1o
time On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2023, applicable from April 1, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements
The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together with other|
information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of gencral purpose financial statements, The Company does not expect this
amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements

Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes
The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and dccommissioning obligations. The amendiments narrowed the scope of the
recogmition cxemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer applics to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise (0 cqual taxable
and deductible temporary differcnces. The Company is evaluating the impact, if any, in its financial statements

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a
definition of accounting estimates, Under the new definition, accounting cstimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to mecasurement uncertainty” Entities
develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be mcasured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The Company does not gxpeot
this amendinent to have any significant impact in its financial statements
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CarntLane Trading Private Limited

Nptes to the
(+4r amonnts in INR lakhs, nnless otherwise stated)

dal financial ts for the year ended 31 March 2023

Right of use assets*

Particulars

As al
31 Marcha 2023

As at
31 March 2022

(hwned assets
Buildings

As al April 1 11,121 6,739
Add  Additions 16,162 4,382
Less Modifications / Terminations 2.387 :
As al March 31 24.896 11,121
Accumulated amortisation

As at April 1 3,705 2,252
Add Amortisalion expense 2,557 1,453
Less : Modifications / Terminations 1,405 -
As at March 31 4,857 3.705
Nel carrying value 290,039 7,416
*Also refer note 30

Financial assets

{i) Investments

As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Investment in equity instruments (unquoted)
Investment in subsidiary (at cost unless stated otherwise))
150 shares (Previous year Nil) fully paid equity shares of $ 1,000 each in StudioC Inc, USA

Aggregate book value of unquoted investments

(ii) Loans receivable

109 109
109 109
109 109

Particulars

As at
3] March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Unsecured, considered good
Loan to StudioC Inc (Refer note 29)

(iii) Other financial assets

1.998

227

1.998

227

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Unsecured, considered pood
Security deposils

Lease receivables (Refer note 30)
Other deposits

1.906 944
4,698 3,482

10 19
6,614 3,445
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Notes to the dalone fi ial
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

8 [Income tax

ts Tor the year ended 31 March 2023

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabilities):

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Income tax expenses
Current tax - -
Deferred lax 3,723 (5,057)
Income tax included in other comprehensive income on:
- Remeasurement of employee defined benefit plans [Eg)] {40}
Tax expense for the year 3.696 {(5.007)

a)
. As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred lax assets 1.403 5,097
1.403 5,097
Recognised in the Recognised in
Particulars el statement of profit and othey ]
1 April 2022 loss comprehensive 31 March 2023
income
Deferred tax assets
Provision for doubtful trade receivables 11 6 - 17
Property, plant and equipment 218 (73) - 145
Employec benefits 232 86 27 345
Lease liabilities (net of Right-of-use assets) 156 84 240
Carryforward of Losses and unabsorbed depreciation 4,480 (3,901) - 579
Provision for Property, plant and equipment - 29 - 29
Provision for warranty - 47 47
5,097 (3.723) 27 1405
Recognised in the Recognised in
Particulars Asint statement of profit and Sther —
1 April 2021 loss comprehensive 31 March 2022
mcome
Deferred tax assels
Provision for doubtful trade receivables - il - 11
Property, plant and equipment 218 - 218
Employee benefits - 192 40 232
Lease liabilities (net of Right-of-use assets) - 156 - 156
Carryforward of Losses and unabsorbed depreciation - 4. 480 - 4.480
- 5,057 40 5,097
b A recognised in t of profit and loss
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Caratbane Trading Private Lionted

Nutes to the
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

dal

financial ts for the year ended 31 March 2023

The reconciliation between the provision of income tax and amounis computed by applying the Indian statutory income tax rate to profit before taxes:

For the year ended

For the year ended

Uy 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit before lax 13,963 4816
Enacted income tax rate in India 2517% 2517%
Computed expected tax expense 3,514 1,212
Effect of:
Effect of deferred taxes on Carryforward losses, unabsorbed depreciation and others not recognised in - (6,269)
earlier year
Effcet of utilisation of carryforward losses and unabsorbed depreciation against current years profit 209 -
Income tax exp T d in the of profit and loss 3,723 (5,057)

Note : From the Assessment Year 2022-23 onwards relevant to the previous year 2021-22, the Company has elected to exercise the option permitted under
section 115BAA(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 after salisfying the conditions contained in section 115BAA(2) as introduced by the Taxation Laws
(Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 Accordingly, the Company has not recognized Minimum altemative Tax (MAT') under the provision for income tax for the
year ended 31 March 2023 and computed deferred tax based on the rate prescribed in the said section primarily for the carried forward losses

The following table provides the details of income tax assets and income (ax liabilities as of 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022:

Parliculars Asiat Aslat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Income tax assets (net) 215 115
Current tax habilities (net) - -
215 115

Net current income tax assets at the end of the year

For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Nel current income tax assets at the beginning of the year 115 96
Income tax paid 127 47
Refund received during the year * 27 28

215 115

Net current income tax assets al the end of the year

* During the year ended 31 March 2023, refund had been received for Assessement Year 2021-22 of Rs 29 84 Lakhs including Interest on refund amounting

1o Rs 2 46 Lakhs

Other non-current assels

As at

ticul.
Particulars 31 March 2023

As al
31 March 2022

Unsecured, comsidiered good

Captal advances 668 166
Deferred rental deposit 124 115
Balance wilh government authorities 2,344 43

3,136 024
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the standal financial for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

10 [nventories

2 As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Raw materials 12,545 12,483
Work-in-progress 1,289 1,078
Finished goods 61,835 32,649
Stock-in-trade 13,703 7.170

89,372 53.380

Notes :

(i) The cost of goods sold recognised during the year is INR 140,496 lakhs (previous year. INR 84,858 lakhs).

(11) The cost of iventories recognised as an expense includes INR 6.70 lakhs (previous year: INR 5 lakhs) in respect of wrile down of inventory to net-
realisable value

(iii) The inventory includes gold purchased on loan from banks amounting to INR 20,93 | lakhs (previous year: INR 23,643 lakhs) Also refer notes 18(ii)
(iv) Inventory includes 775 kg of Gold out of which 767 kg are hedged through gold loan from bank and future contracts and 8 kg arc unhedged as at 31
March 2023

(v) There are no goods-in-transit as at 31 March 2023 (Previous year: Rs Nil)

(vi) Refer potni 3(v1) under significant accounting policies for mode of valuation

11 Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
Particulars . ASmy
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured
Trade receivables, considered good 1,344 A\ 1,024
Recewvables from related parties (Refer note 29) 2,261 1,027
Less Allowance for doubtful trade receivables - -
3,605 2,051
Trade receivables, credit imparied - 43
Less Allowance for doubtful trade receivables - (43)
3,605 2,051

(a) Ageing of receivables :

As a1 31 Murch 2023

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Less than 6 months # 6 months - >1
| vear vear
(1) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 3,496 109 -
(i1} Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk = =
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - -
(iv) Dispuled Trade Receivables— considered good - - s
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit nisk - = =
(v1) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - b £
Total 3.496 109 -

# mcludes amount not due

* The outslanding amount for more than a year to 2 year amounts to Rs. Nil lakhs, more than 2 year to 3 year amounts to Rs Nil and for more than 3 years amounts to Rs Nil

Ag at 31 March 2022 :

Ouistanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 months # 6 months - >1
1 vear vear
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 1,865 186 -
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk - - -
(ii1) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - 3 40
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk - -
(v1) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - = =
Total 1.865 189 40

# includes amount not due

* The outstanding amount for more than a year to 2 year amounts to Rs. 28 lakhs, more than 2 year to 3 year amounts to Rs 5 lakhs and for more than 3 years amounts to Rs 7 lakhs

(b) Movement in the expected credit loss allowance :

: As al As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year N -
Provision created during the year ; :
Bad debts written off during the year (43
Balance at the end of the vear - =
. \
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CaratLune Trading Private Limited
Notes to the dal financial
(Al amounts in INR fakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Financial assets (continued)
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents

( for the year ended 31 March 2023

Note:

made under rote 33

(b) Contract asset represents the amount of goods expected to be reczivi

B As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash on hand 109 61
Balances with banks :
(1) m current account 397 336
(11) 1n EEFC account - 29
506 426
(iii) Other bank balances
Particulars Asiat Asal
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deposits with original maturity of more than three months 2
Deposits under Lien * 178 176
Total 178 178
* Pertains Lo deposits with bank for duty free gold purchases which are interded to be exported and deposits given for indirect tax related notices
(iv) Loans receivable
Particulars =t ey
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Employee loans 523 198
523 198
(v) Other linancial assels
Particulars o Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Lease reccivables (Refer note 30) 649 625
Security deposils 335 319
Interest receivable from StudioC (Refer Note 29) 56 4
Interest accrucd on fixed deposits 20 6
Accrued Income 59 =
Other recervable (Refer note (a) below) 563 476
Margin money (or gold luture contracts 2519 56
4.201 1.486
Note :
(a) Balance pertains to amount receivable from franchisee's towards day to day expenditure
12 Other current assets
Particulars . gl
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Balance with government authorities (Refer Note (a) below) 10911 7,511
Prepaymens 536 287
Contracl assels (Refer note 33) 311 246
Other assets 8 -
Advance to suppliers 1,007 879
Less Allowance towards advance lo supplier - (130
12,873 8.792

(a) Balance with government authorities pertains cuurent and non current GST credits of Rs.13,255 lakhs (Previous year' Rs. 8,154 lakhs) in
respect to GST input credit, transitional credit and deemed credit

¢d by the Company cr account or sales retuim. Also, refer disclosure
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(A1l amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

13 Share capital

R As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Particulars
No of shares Amount No of shares Amount

Authorised share capital

Equity share of Rs, 2 each with voting rights 49,953,234 999 49,953,234 999
Total authorised share capital 49,953,234 999 49,953,234 999
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity share capital

Equity share of Rs. 2 each with voting rights 33,345,841 667 33,270.052 665
Total issued share capital 33,345,841 667 33,270,052 665

(i) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs, 2. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed by
the Board of Directors is subject to approval by the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(ii) Shares reserved for issue under Employee Stock Option Scheme

During the financial year 2017-18, the Company introduced Caratlane Stock Option Plan 2017 (‘the Plan’). This Plan supersedes the foliowing stock options and stock
option plans:

a. Executive Management Stock Option Scheme 2009

b. CaratLane Trading India Private Limited Stock Option Scheme for Consultants, 2013

¢ Senior Management Stock Option Scheme, 2012

As per the plan, Board of Directors grants options to the employees of the Company The vesting period of the option is one to four years from the date of grant. Options
granted under the Scheme can be exercised within a period of six years from the date of vesting. For employees leaving the organization, an option can be exercised
within 3 months from the date of resignation.

During the year the Company granted 2,500 options to employees

A maximum of 714,017 options are issuable under this plan. The movement in options issued are as below:

Particulars For the year ended avez;leg::zgcise For the year ended Weighted average
31 March 2023 Sifee 31 March 2022 exercise price
Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 574,000 174 552,000 150
Options granted during the year 2,500 474 43,000 474
Options forfeited during the year (9,000) 302 (2,600) 295
Options exercised durmg the year (75.789) 79 (18,400) 135
Qutstanding at the end of the year 491,711 188 574,000 174
Options exercisable at the end of the year 379,711 133 424,900 106

Fair value measurement

The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black-Scholes-Merton Model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the share price at
grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option.

The key inputs used in Black-Scholes-Merton Model for calculating fair value of options under the scheme as on the date of grant are as follows:

The weighted average remaining contractual life of the options outstanding as of March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 under the Caratlane stock Options Plan was 6
years and 7 years respectively

The fair value of the options is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton Model with the following assumptions:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
No, of options granted 2,500 43,000
Date of grant August 12022 July 28,2021
For 1,375 options
Vesting period immediafelvesting §nd 4 years
1,125 graded vesting
over 4 years
Dividend yicld (%) - -
Volatility rate (%) 3371% -
Risk free rate (%) 721% 6,05%
Expected life of options (ycars) 50 5.5
Weighted average fair value per share (Rs,) 1,128 609
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ates to the dal fi ial stat ts for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

ﬁ 13 Share capital (continued)

(i) Shares reserved for issue under Employee Stock Option Scheme (continued)
“\;’ The stock price of the Company is arrived using discounted cashflow. Implied volatility is the unit at which the price of shares of peer listed companies has fluctuated during
the past period. The expected time to maturity/ expected life of the options is the period for which the Company expects the options to be alive, which has been taken as 10
years subject to adjustment of time lapses from the date of grant. The risk free rate considered for calculation is based on the yield on Government Securities for 10 years as on

M.

the date of valuation,

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company recorded employee compensation of Rs 113 lakhs (Previous year : Rs. 165 lakhs) in the standalone statement of profit
and loss towards options granted / forfeited / expired. Refer note 24 for further details

¢

| (iii) Reconciliation of the shares outst ding at the beginning and at the end of the year
3 As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
I Particulars No. of shares Amount No. of shares O
. Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
"': Equity shures with voting rights
Al the beginning of the year 33,270,052 665 33,251,652 665
Add: Issue of shares pursuant to options being exercised by employees 75,789 2 18,400 0
At the end of the year 33,345,841 667 33,270,052 665

iv) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Note
I Includes shares held by directors jointly with Titan Company Limited and Nominee Directors

¢ @ v

@ LU O VvV U LU Vv v

)
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\-T As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Particulars % %o
No. of shares held e Ne. of shares held holdi
Equity shares with voting rights
Mr. Mithun Padam Sacheti 3,835,327 11.50% 3,835,327 1153%
. Mr Siddhartha Padam Sacheti 3,700,000 111086 3,700,000 11.12%
Mr Padam Sacheti 1,655,000 4.96% 1,655,000 4.97%
Titan Company limited {Refer Note 1) 24.036.320 72.08% 24,036,325 72.25%
- Total 33,226,647 99.64% 33,226,652 99.87%
(v) Shareholding of promoters
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
P ¢ % Y
. No. of Shares | % of total shares / Change No. of Shares | % of total shares A’ Change
during the year during the year
L Titan Company Limited (Refer Note 1) 24,036,325 72.08% - 24,036,325 72.25% -
Mr. Mithun Padam Sacheti 3,835,327 11.50% - 3,835,327 11.53% -
Mr_ Siddhartha Padam Sacheti 3,700,000 11.10% - 3,700,000 11.12% -
Mr Padam Sacheti 1.655.000 4.96% - 1.655.000 497% -
-
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise staied)

14 Other equity

. As at Asat
Particulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Securities premium 41,141 40,978
(Amounts received on issue of shares in excess of the par value has been classificd as securities premium)
Stock options outstanding account 864 851
(Shares granted 1o employee under employee stock option plan)
Retained earnings (20,277) (30,518)
(Retained earnings comprise of the Company s prior years' losses afier tux)
Other comprehensive income (326) 44)
(Represents actuarial gain or loss on remeasurement of net defined benefit liability and effective portions of gains
and loss on designated portion of hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge)
21,402 11,067
15 Financial liabilities - Non Current
i. Borrowings
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

At amortised cost:

Secured

Long-term borrowings (Tenm loan)*

Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings

* Sccured against the Corporate Guarantee issued by Titan Company Limited at an interest rate of 0.5% per annum

bank is 7.9% from March 2023 A repayment of Rs.657 lakhs of the principal amount was made during the year

ii. Lease liabilities

219 876
219 (657)
- 219

The effective interest rate of the term loan was 7.02% per annum and is payable over 48 equal monthly installments begining from 1 June 2019. Current revised rate as per the

Particulars i As at
eu 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Lease linbilities (Refer note 30) 23,0235 10,293
23,015 10,293
iii. Other financial liabilities
N As at As at
gl 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Rental deposit [refer note 30] 362 312
362 312
16 Other non-current liabilities
Particul As at As at
LT 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred rental deposit [refer note 30] 87 108
87 108
17 Provisions
Particul As at As at
. 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for gratuity [Refer note 31] - Long Term 693 499
Provision for compensated absences [Refer note 31] - Long Term - 175
693 674
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounis in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

18 Financial liabilities - Current

i. Borrowings

Particulars (s at fASiat

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Secured
Bank overdraft and cash credit (Secured) ** 33,237 2,631
Current maturities of long tenm borrowings* 219 657
Unsecured
Bank overdraft and cash credit (Unsecured) 1,993 -
Commercial paper [refer note 34] 21,262 14,865

56,711 18,153

Notes :

* Refer Note 15(i)
** Secured against the Company's inventory, receivables and movable fixed assets on pari-passu basis. The interest rate on the overdraft varies from 4.3% to 8.6% per annum

and is payable at monthly intervals. The overdraft is payable on demand
The Company has filed statements as at the quarter end with the banks which are in agreement with the books of accounts as at respective quarter ends,

ii. Gold on loan

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Secured
Payable to banks*

20,931

23,643

20,931

23,643

*Secured against inventory and receivables, Includes amounts payable against gold purchased from various banks under gold on loan scheme. The interest rate of the gold on
loan varies from 2.25% to 2.6% per annum as at 31 March 2023 and is payable at monthly intervals. The credit period under.the aforesaid arrangement is 180 days from the

date of the delivery of gold.

iii. Lease liabilities

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Lease liabilities [refer note 30] - Current 3317 1.849
3.317 1,849
iv. Trade payables
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Trade payables

Outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises [Refer note (a) below]
Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

- Creditors for goods

- Creditors for services

3,466 3,970
8,222 8,665
7,618 4,260
19,306 16.895
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(a) Ageing of Tradc Payables :

As at 31 March 2023

Outstanding for following periods from due date

Particulars of payment
Less than 1 year# More than I year*
(i) MSME 3462 4
{ii) Others 15,707 133
(iti) Disputed dues - MSME a .
(iv) Disputed dues — Others = «
19,169 137

# includes amount not due

and TNR 17 Lakhs for others and for more than 3 years amounts to INR Nil for MSME and INR Nill for others,

As at 31 March 2022;

* The outstanding amount for more than a year to 2 year amounts to Rs, 4 for MSME and INR 116 lakhs for others, More than 2 year to 3 years amounts to INR Nil for MSME

Outstanding for following periods from due date

Particulars of payment
Less than 1 year# More than 1 year*
(i) MSME 3,961 )
(i) Others 12,864 61
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - =
(iv) Disputed dues — Others = -
16,825 70

# includes amount not due
INR 11 Lakhs for others and for more than 3 years amounts to INR Nil for MSME and INR 18 Lakhs for others.

(b) Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Smali and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006:

basis of information available with the Company and has been relicd upon by the auditors.

* The outstanding amount for more than a ycar to 2 year amounts to INR 9 lakhs for MSME and INR 32 lakhs for others, More than 2 year to 3 years amounts to INR Nil for MSME and

There are no material dues owed by the Company to Micro and Small enterprises, which are outstanding for more than 45 days during the year and as at 31 March 2023, This
information as required under the Micro, Small and Mediumn Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaimng unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting
year,

- Principal

- Interest
(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterpriscs
Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day during each accountmg year;
(c) the gmount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond
the appomted day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Devilopiment Act, 2006,
(1) the amount of interest aceried and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and
{e) the amount of further imerest remaning due and payable even in the suceeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues above are eetually pard to the small enterprise, for the purposs of disallowance of a deductible expenditure
under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

been relied upon by the auditors

v. Other financial liabilities

3,466

3,970

3,466

3.970

Ducs to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the Management. This has

Particulars gy Sk
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Capital creditors 192 188
Employee payables 1.472 953
1,664 1,141




¢ G U j

@ ¢

H @ @ @

o

¢ U ¢

i!,(

U U U «

20

CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the i
(4!l amounts in INR lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

dal fi 1 ¢

19 Other current liabilities

ts for the year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars st Lot
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred rental deposit 22 27
Statutory dues 545 324
Contract liability (Refer note 33) 472 356
Deposit from franchisee 40 45
Advance from customers 5,522 3.345
6,601 4,097
Provisions
Particulars As at ASTAL
31 March 2023 31 Muarch 2022
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 31) 181 130
Provision for compensated absences (Refer note 31) 389 118
Provision for warranty 188 104
758 352
Note a: Provision for warranty
Movement below is for provision of warrinty during the year:
. As at As at
S 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balance 104 Gl
Provisions made during the year 155 92
Utilsations / reversed during the year (71) (48)
Provision at the end of the year 188 104

* This page has intentionally been left blank*
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

21 Revenue from operations

For the year ended

D 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Export 4112 4771
Domestic 211,397 120,946
Sale of products 215,509 125,717
215,509 125,717

For the year ended

23 (a) Cost of material consumed

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Contracted price 251,281 148,386
Reduction towards variable consideration 35,772 22,669
Revenue recognised 215,509 125,717
The reduction towards variable consideration comprises of scheme discounts, incentives, etc.
22 Other income
Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest on loan (Refer Note 29) 76 4
Corporate expense cross charge (Refer Note 29) 231 77
Franchisee signining fees 360 95
Deferred rental income 131 69
Rent deposit equalization 55 9
Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost (Refer Note 30) 553 566
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (Net) 38 14
Net gain on sale of current investments 3 33
Miscellaneous income 730 134
2,177 1,001

For the year ended

Sl 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Inventories of raw materials at the beginning of the year 12,483 5,047
Add: Purchases 160,704 100,933
Add: Direct Expenses - -
Less: Inventories of raw materials at the end of the year (12,545) (12.483)

160,642 93,497
23 (b) Purchases of stock-in-trade
Particulars For the year ended 1
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Purchases of traded goods 15,784 11,852
15,784 11,852
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(41l amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

23 (c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Finished goods

- Closing stock 61,835 32,649
- Opening stock 32.649 14.147
29,186 18,502

Work-in-progress
- Closing stock 1,289 1,078
- Opening stock 1,078 486
211 592

Stock-in-trade

- Closing stock 13,703 7,170
- Opening stock 7.170 5.773
6,533 1,397
Increase in inventory 35,930 20,491

24 Employee benefits expense

For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Salaries, wages and bonus 11,900 8,001
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 31) 328 231
Staff welfare expense 1,191 554
Employee share based payment expense (Refer Note 13) 113 165

13,532 8,951

25 Finance cost

For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Interest on borrowings 3,005 1,093
Interest on lease liabilities 1,636 984
Others 17 7

4,658 2,084

26 Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 5(i)) 1,175 673

Depreciation of right of use asset (Refer Note 5) 2,548 1,453

Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer Note 5(ii)) 750 527 |4
4473 2,653

*
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements fo
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

r the year ended 31 March 2023

Other expenses
Particulars For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Advertising 15,452 9,272
Agent commission 13,558 7,550
Rent (Refer note 30) 489 110
Freight and forwarding 1,618 1,474
Travelling and conveyance 824 311
Professional service charges 3,328 1,376
Bank charges 803 668
Software expenditure 1,239 828
Allowance for doubtful advances = 1
Bad debts written off (Net of provision) - 26
Power and fuel 365 183
Communication expenses 118 103
Rates and taxes 196 53
Director sitting fee (Refer note 29) 29 33
Repairs and maintenance 775 422
Payments to auditors (Refer note below) 55 39
Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer 27.2 below) 18
Property. plant and equipment wriitten off 96 33
Intangible assets wrtitten off 17 -
Stores and consumables 264 168
Royalty (Refer note 29) 322 191
Miscellaneous expenses 1,000 515

40,564 23,356

Notes :

(i) Payment to auditors

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

For statutory audit 28 22
For tax audit 2 2
For Limited review 24 14
Reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses 1 1

55 39

x
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(AN amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

27.2 (ii) Corperate Social Responsibility:

(ii} Amount spent during the year on:

(i) Gross amount required to be spent towards corporate social responsibility by the Company during the year: Rs. 17 lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

- On purposes other than above
3. Excess/(Shortfall) at the end of the year
4, Total of previous years shortfall
5. Reason for short fall

6. Nature of CSR Activities

Health, Education,
Skill development,
Disaster relief, Wellness
and Water,
Sanitaticn and Hygiene,
Entrepreneurship

1. Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 17 -
2. Amount of expenditure incurred on:

-Construction/acquisition of any asset - -

18 B

Not Applicable

(iif) CSR Contribution to Rélated parties

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Related Parties
Unrelated parties

18
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Earnings per share

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

Reconciliation of basic and diluted shares used in computing per share

Particulars

For the venr ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Basic and diluted profit per share
Profit after tax

Number of weighted average shares considered for calculation of basics earning per share

Add : Dilutive effect of stock options

Number of weighted average shares considered for calculation of diluted earning per share

Earning per share

Nominal value of share (in INR)
Earnings per share - Basic (in INR)
Earnings per share - Diluted (in INR)

Related party disclosures
Relationship
a) Holding company

b) Subsidiary

c) Key management personnel

d) Enterprises in which Key Management Personnel or relative of
Key Management Personnel has significant influence

Titan Company Limited
StudioC Inc.

Mr. Mithun Padam Sacheti, Managing Director
Mr. Bhaskar Bhat, Non-executive Director

Mr. Ashok Kumar Sonthalia (w.e.f. 26 April 2021)

10,240 9,873
33,296,665 33,260,005
213.096 225,978
33,509,761 33,485,983
2 2

30.75 29.68
30,56 2048

Mr. C K Venkataraman, Non-executive Director (w.e. f 22 December 2022)
Mr. Subramaniam Somasundaram, Non-executive Director (Re51gned w.e.f. 27 April 2021)

Mr. Haresh Ram Chawla, Independent Director (w.e.f. 10 July 2021)

Mr. Sandeep Anant Kuihalli, Non-executive Director ( Resigned w.e.f. 9th Nov 2022 )

Mr. Ajoy Hiro Chawla, Non-executive Director

Mr. Mathrubootham Rathnagirish, Independent Duecto;(Resngned w.e.f. 27 April 2021)

Ms. Neelam Chhiber, Independent Director
Mr. Manoj Bhanawat, Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Ahona Das (Company Secretary)

Not A Box, Partnership Firm

Freshworks Inc.

Microgo, LLP

Jaipur Gems and Handicrafts Private Limited
Starfire Gems Private Limited

Luxury Online Retail India Private Limited
M/s Yashrey

Titan Commodity Trading Limited

Transactions with the related parties during the year are set out in the table below:

Name of the related party

Nature of transaction

For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Jaipur Gems and Handicrafts Private Limited Sale of goods 980 1
Reimbursement of expenses - Payable 12 7

Sale of property plant and equipment - 0

Starfire Gems Private Limited Purchase of goods 113 398
Sale of Goods - 28

Rent payable 22 25

Reimbursement of expenses - 2

Freshworks Inc Services - 39
StudioC Inc Sale of goods 3,837 1,022
Other Income - Cross charge 231 77

Loan given during the year * 1,771 227

Investment in equity shares - 109

Reimbursement of Expenses - 2

Interest on loan 76 4

Titan Company Limited Purchase of goods 89 216
Royalty expense 322 191
Bad Debt Write off - 22

Other Income 8 .
Purchase of capex - 1
Rent and miscellaneous income 34 50
Reimbursement of expenses 14

Insurance, salary and other expenses 492 296
3 6

* Inehudvs retnstatement of closing loan balance of Rs 44 lakhs

Interest on Corporate guarantee




i

V U YU U Y e e o

B

VO © U @

> ¢ 0

U

29

CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the
(A1l amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

tandal o 201 chat:

Related party disclosures (continued)

ts for the year ended 31 March 2023

Transactions with the related parties during the year are set out in the table below (Contd):

Name of the related party

Nature of transaction

For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Titan Commodity Trading Limited Cemmodity Trading Transactions 509 -
Cash Margin money 1,386 -
Interest income 10 -
Commission on commodity trading services 4 -
Yashrey Rent 103 -
Security Deposit 207 -
Mithun Padam Sacheti Director’s remuneration 262 182
Manoj Bhanawat Chief financial officer remuneration 102 76
Ahona Das Gupta Remuneration 18 13

Transactions with the related partics during the year are set out in the table below

Name of the related party

Nature of transaction

For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Neelam Chhiber Sitting fees 1 12
Haresh R Chawla Sitting fees 8 6
Bhaskar Bhat Sitting fees 6 7
Sandeep Anant Kulhalli Sitting fees 4 6
Mathrubootham Rathnagirish Sitting fees - 1
Neelam Chhiber Commission to Directors* - 11
Haresh R Chawla Commission to Directors* - 6
Bhaskar Bhat Commission to Directors* 8
Sandeep Anant Kulhalli Commission to Directors* - 7
Mathrubootham Rathnagirish Commission to Directors* - 1
Not A Box Reimbur of exp /services - Receivable - -
Microgo LLP Reimbursement of expenses/services - Receivable 4 4
* excludes provision for commission payable to directors for year ended 31 March 2023 amounting to Rs.50 Lakhs
Balances as on balance sheet date
) Asat As at
Name of the related party Nature of transaction 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Starfire Gems Private Limited Trade payable 4 40
Trade Receivables - 28
Security deposit 6 6
Studio C Inc Trade receivable 2,228 994
Interest receivable 56 4
Loan to StudioC Inc. 1,998 227
Investment in share capital 109 109
Titan Company Limited Trade payable 2 93
Royalty Payable 324 172
Trade receivable 32 5
Not A Box Reimbursement of expenses/services - Receivable - 6
Microgo LLP * Trade Payable - 0
Security deposit . 0
Titan Commodity Trading Limited Cash margin receivable 1,386 -
Interest receivable 10 -
Yashrey Security Deposit 207

Lettar of financial support provided to StudioC Ine, USA for the period ended 31 March 2023

*Represent amount less than 1 lakh

Notes:

a) The above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identifi

the auditors.

b) The above figures do not include provisions for encash:

ed on the basis of information available with the Company and relied upon by

able leave, gratuity and pension, as separate actuarial valuation are not available.

|lll r.
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Leases

Amounts recosnised in balance sheet

Farticukirs Note ]
31 Mureh 2023
(i} Right-of-use assets 4
Buildings 20,039 7,416
(ii) Lease liabilities
Non-curient 15(1i) 23,025 10,293
Current 18(1in 3317 1.849
26,342 12,142
(iii) Leuse receivables
Non-curient 6(1m 4,698 3,482
Curient 10(s1) 649 625
5347 4,107
Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss
. Asat Asat
husticalar Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(1) Depreciation and amortisation expense
Buldings 26 2,548 1,453
(1) Interest expense (included in finance cost) 2 1,636 984
(i) Interest income on sub-lease (included in other income) on 553 366
(1v) Expense relating 1o short-term leases 25 183 414
(v) Cxpense relatng o variable lease payments 25 17 12
{v1) Rent concessions 25 - (317)
(a) Short-term lease has been accounted for applying paragraph 6 of Ind AS 116 - lease and accordingly recognized as expenses in the standalone statement of profit and loss.
(b) The tota! cash outflow for the year ended March 31, 2023 amounts to Rs. 3,005 lakhs.
Employee benefit obligations
a) Defined contribution plan
The contributions recognized in the standalone statement of profit and loss during the year are as under:
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 20123 31 March 2022
Employee provident fund 320 220
7 11

Employee state insurance

b) Defined benefit plan - Gratuity (non-funded)

Under the defined benefit plan, the company provides for a lumpsum payment to eligible employees, at retirement or termination of employment based on the last drawn salary and years

of employment with the company

The plan typically exposes the company to actuarial risk such as interest risk and salary risk

A movement in the bond interest rate will impact the plan liability

Interest nsk
Salary nsk

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

"~ The present value of the def:l_ngbeneﬁt plan liability is calculated by reference to the
participants, as such an increase in the salary of the plan participants and vice-versa.

future salaries of_p!un

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount rate (p.a.) 7.30% 6.00%)
Salary escalation rate (p.a.)
- Comporate 10.78% 10.60%
- Non-corporate 976% 8:56%
- Manufacturing 9.35% 6.497%
Attrition rate
- Corporate 26.67% 26.60%
- Non-corporate 24.00% 25.12%
- Manufactunng 6.67% 8.28%

- The employees of the Company are assumed to retire at the age of 5§ years
- The montality rates considered are as per the published rates in the Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ult table.




)
)

)

YU 3% P UL U

3

e
“3
E_‘;
<
w
-

CaratLanc Trading Private Limited
Noles to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Sensitivity analysis

other assumptions constant,

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Defined benefit obligation when a minus 50 bps for respective rates 1s applied

Particulars
Discount rate Escalation rate
Defined benefit obligation when a plus 50 bps for respective rates is applied 854 893
896 857

For the year ended

31 March 2022

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM') evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on ana
Accordingly, segment information has been presented for industry classes The operating segment has been identified to be
an overall Company level as one segment,

Particulars
Discount rate Escalation rate
Defined benefit obligation when a plus 50 bps for respective rates is applied 614 (42
Defined benefit obligation when a minus 50 bps for respective rates is applied 644 6l
i As at As at
Maturity profile 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Expected benefits for year 1 181 130
Expected benefits for year 2 161 114
Expected benefits for year 3 139 101
Expected benefits for year 4 127 86
Expected benefits for year 5 109 74
Expected benefits in next 5 years and above (37 371
31  Employee benefit obligations (continued)
Companents of defined benefit costs recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss are as follows:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current service cost 141 91
Interest on net defined benefit liability 33 19
Total expense charged to the standalone statement of profit and loss 174 110
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income are as follows:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Remeasurements during the year 107 157
The service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the 'Salaries, wages and bonus' line item in the standalone statement of profit and loss, The remeasurement of
the net defined liability is included in other comprehensive income The amount included in the standalone balance sheet ansing from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined
benefit plans is as follows:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening defined benefit liability 629 410
Expense charged to standalone statement of profit and loss 174 110
Amount recognised outside the standalone statement of profit and loss account 107 157
Employer contributions (37) [k ]
Closing defined benefit liability 874 629
¢) Compensated absences
This provision covers the Company's liability for earned leave.
Provision as at March 31, 2023 amounting to Rs. 130 lakhs (2022: Rs. 118 lakhs) is presented as current, since the Company based on past experience does not expect all employees to
avail the full amount of accrued leave or require payment for such leave within the next 12 months.
Similar assumptions have been made as per the defined benefit plan
The service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the 'Salaries, wages and bonus' line item in the statement of profit and loss. The remeasurement of the net
liability iz included n other comprehensive income The amount included in the standalone balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its compensated absences 1s as!
follows:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Compensated absences
Non-current - 175
Current 389 118
389 193
32 Segment reporting

lysis of vanous perfonmnance indicators by industry clisses.
as the CODM reviews business performance at

"Jewellery"

S
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(ANl amownts n INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Contract asset and liability
Contract asset represents the amount of goods expected to be reccived by the Company on account of sales returm, Thus, it represents the value of sales the Company eslimates to be

returned on account of sales return

Nature As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Contract liability
Opening balance 356 274
Less: Provision reversed towards sales returns (356) (274)
Add: Provision towards sales return created 472 356
Closing balance 472 356
Contract assets
Opening balance 246 197
Less: Provision reversed towards sales returns (246) (197}
Add: Provision towards sales return created 311 246
Closing balance 3l 246
Commercial paper
The following tables sct forth, for the period indicated, details of commercial paper:
Murch 31,2023
Maturitics (-1 Month 2-3 Months 4-6 Months
Face value - 21,500 -
Carrving value : {21.262) =
The following tables set forth, ratings assigned by credit rating agency at March 31,2023
Instrument ICRA CRISIL

Commercial paper ICRA [Al+] CRISIL AA/ Positive

Contingent liabilities and commitments

Particulars AT As af
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
- Guarantecs excluding financial guarantees - -
- Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:
677 677

Sales tax matters
- Other money for which the Company is contingently liable

that it had paid Rs. 615 Lakhs by way of not transitioning to the GST regime, which

Out of the above claim of Rs. 677 Lakhs, the contention of the company to the depariment was
£ back up documents, the above demand was raised. Further, the

agmin was mentioned by the principal commissioner in his demand order. Ttis on the ground of non submission o
Company had taken certification from & Chartered Aceountant on such non-transitioning of CENVAT credit to GST regime.

tification by the relevant authorities, as the case may be, and the Company is contesting these

The above amounts arc based on the notice of demand or the Assessment Orders or nof
d on the oulcome of the decisions of the appellate authoritics and the Company's rights

claims with the respective authorities. Outflows, if any, arising out of these claims would depen
for future appeals before the judiciary. No reimbursements are expected,

The Supreme court of India in the month of February 2019 had passed 1 judgement relating to definition of wages under the Provident Fund Act, 1952 However, considering that there
are numerous interpretative issues relating to this judgement and in the absence of reliable measurement of the provision for the earlier periods, the Company has made a provision for|
provident fund contribution based on it's interpretation of the said judgement. The Company will evaluate its position and update its provision, if required, on receiving further clarity on

the subject. The Company does not expect any material impact of the same

During the previous year, the Company reccived Show Cause Notice (‘SCN’) dated 28 March 2022, from the office of the Dircctorate of Enforcement, Government of India (‘DOE")

alleging that the Company reccived Foreign Direct Investment (‘FDI’) during the year(s) 2011 to 9014 in licu of issue of shares to overscas investor, which was utilised in Single Brand
Retail Trading activities without prior approval from the RBI. The show-causc notice pertained to an alleged violation of FEMA Rules as Foreign Direct Investment in sigle-bring

retail was not penmitted under automatic route in above stated periods

The Company, based upon the management bricfing, approached a former Chief Justice of India who had opined that CaratLane was not in violation of the FEMA rules i at the|

relevant period, it was only engaged in B2B sales and was not in retail trade. Furthermore, during the year, the Company filed detailed reply to the DOE with clarification vide their
letter dated October 28, 2022 Thereafter the Company also preferred 4 Writ Petition bearing No. 30893 of 2022 (*Writ Petition™), filed before the Hon’ble High Court of Judicaturc at
Madras (‘Hon'ble Court’), challenging the SCN and proccedings before DOE. The same was heard by the Hon’ble Court on November 21, 2022, and DOE was directed to file a|
counter-affidavit as its response, within 4 wecks. However, as on date, no responsc has been filed by DOE and the time period for filing the same has also lapsed. Thelisting of the

matter for hearing before Hon’ble Court has not been notified till date.

deration, the Management considered that no provision i3

Bascd on the legal opinion received and its assessment of transactions and provisions of FEMA Rules for the years under consi
cment would evaluate this position 1m subsequent years,

required (o be carried n the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 in relation to the above matter. The Manag
bascd on outcome of proceedings before the Hon'ble Court and DOE,

Out of the above claim of Rs. 677 Lakhs, the contention of the company to the departr
again was mentioned by the principal commissioner in his demand order 1t is on the
Company had taken certification from a Chartered Accountant on such non-transitioning of CENVAT credit to GST regime

ment was that it had paid Rs, 615 Lakhs by way of not transitioning to the GST regime, which
ground of non submission of back up documents, the above demand was raised, Further, the

Letter of Financial Support to StudioC Inc, USA
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i Financial instruments

Mo
f
'T)Jﬁ 1 Categorics of incrcinl instruments
\ Financial assets
. Asal As al
Particulars
ok 31 March 2023 31 Miirch 2022
4. Measured at aminrtised cost
" by | - Loans to employees (Refer note 10(+)) 523 198
. - Sccurity and ofher deposits (Refer note 6(iii) and notc 10(vi)) 2251 1.282
- Trade receivables (Refer note 10(ii)} 3.605 2.051
_ Cash and cash cquivalents (Refer note 10giii)) 506 426
} - Other bank balances (Refer note 10(iv)) 178 178
— _ Lease receirables (Refer note 6(iii) and note 10(vi)) 5347 4.107
AOthey financinl pascis (Refor note by mud mote 10000 3215 K
Total fingrciil isyets measured at amprtised cost 9,120
< Tatal finaneinl aascty 17625 bR Bl
| Financial liahi
* Particulars As at As at
~— 31 Muyrch 2023 31 Merch 2022
l a. Mcasured at fair value through profit o los ("FVTPL")
- Gold of loan 20,931 23.643
3 Total financinl fighilitics measured a1 FVTPL (a) 20,931 23,643

. Memvared or pmortised cost

-3
\ « Borrowings 56.711
] - Rental deposils 362
- - T:ade payables 19,300
Leasc liabilities 26342
- Other [imilal liabi 1.664
- Total finuncial 1 3 : 104 385
\.I Tistal financial i { )] 1235516
- 36.2 (i) Fair valuc hicrarchy
- This note explains about basis for deicrmination of fair values of various financial assets and liabilitics:
i
r Particulars Levell Level 2 Level 3 Tutal
Financial assets and liahilitics measured at fair value - March 31, 2023 "
= Financial ligbilitics
- Gold laan 20,931 - - 20.931
Tutal finuncisl nssets 20,931 = ~ 20,931
L § Particulers Leved 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tutul
Finuncial assets and libilitics measured at fair value - March 31,2022
- Gold loan 23043 = = 23.643
Tutnl |'Ir|||||5i..1l e 23,643 - - 23643

Level 1: Level | hicrarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices This includes listed equity instruments. mutual funds The fair salue of all cquity instruments that are traded in the stock
exchanges is valued using the closing price at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing net assct valuce

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that arc not iraded in an active market {for example Over-th ter derivatives) is d incd using valuation techniques which maximize the usc of observable data
and rely as litle as possible on cnlily-specific esti {f all signifi inputs required to fair valuc an instrument are obscrvable. the instrumient is included in level 2

“_j ‘ o

Level 3: ITone or more of the significant inpuis is not based on obscrvable market data_the instrument 1s included in level 3 This is the case of unlisted instruments, deposits employec loans cic

(i} Valuation technique vsed to detcrmine fair vatue

Specific value techmques used to value financial instrunicats include:
- the use of gpeored markst prices for listed instruments.
- the fair valiss uf pemuining Ninancial i is d using di d cash flow analysis

U

liiis Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fuir value disclosures are requircd)

The camrying values of financial assets and liabilitics approximate the fair values
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T ratLane Traiing Private Limited
ntes 1o the standalone financial statement

| (s for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Financinl instruments (continued)

36.3 O ik
Creatit Tisk refirs to the nisk that ihe coumerparly swill default on bts cannretual obligations resuliimg in financial foss 1o the Company “The Company deats najorly with creditend phrtics and phtaing

'-':&’ collatern!, whese appropriate aE & meas af mitigating the risk of finantisl ks from dofaults. Credit tivk is mamaged by the Company. through approsed credit notim. n-.mbl-jdﬁng credit limits s connmumily
matitoring the ereditwornthiness of sustmiers 1o which the Company grants sredil terms in the normal courss of business Ot acecunt of adoption of Ted AS 109, the Company s expasied srcdit foss model jo assces
cdit rsk ariezs principally from the Company’s reecivables [rom custoners Credit risk on Tiguid funds is limited bocause the sounterparies aro baabs. Refer note | 1(H) for the disclosuies foe

{he immpatment ez Cr
- trade reccisables
W 36,4 Lhquidiny risk

The Campany inveits its surplus fisrids fom fimesio-time im vasous short-lerm indtraments. Security of fimds and liguiity shall be the primary consideration while deciding on the type of investments. The Company

P manages liquidity righ by maintainig adequate reserves. banking facilitics and reserve b ing facilities. by Iy monitoring forceast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturily profiles of financial
] ssacts and liabilities, The company expects 10 meet its other ohligationt from operating cish Mows and proceeds of maturing financial asscts
Lituidity risk tables
T follow ing table Belew pnalyses the Company's linancial liabilitics into relevant maturity groupings based on their maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilitics that are net settled
" -y Thie tables have been drawn on an undiscounted basis based on the carliest date on which the Company can be required 1o pay.
Particulars As at As al
l 31 March 2023 31 March 2032
Sccurcd bank overdraft/term loan facility, payable
- - amount used 33456 3.507
- amount unused 10,188 4993
y Secured gold on loan facility, payable
_— - amount used 20,931 23,643
« ount unyscd 36,644 10.357
. Liquidity and interest risk wbles
- The following tables details the Company's remaining contrietal maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilitics, with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn on an undiscounted cash flows of
- financial liabilitics based on the earlicst date on which the Company can be required (o pay.
-_'ﬁ Confractual maturitics of finnneial liuhilitics Less than 3 > 3 months Total,
— ki
As at
31 March 2023
- Non-derivative
) - Security deposils 19 343 362
- Borrowings 56.711 =] 56711
- Trade pavables 18394 I8 912 19.306
- Gold Ioan 12.601 8.330 20931
+ - Lease labililics K04 25.53% 26342
~ (bt Girlancin liabilities 1667 3 LG54
ot nn-derivative Hnhil 0,191 J5.115 125316
= ==
! Contractual maturitics of financial Hubifities Less than 3 > 3 months Total
months
As at
31 March 2022
r.g Non-derivative
- Sceurity deposits 20 292
- Barrowings 17.730 642
— - Trade payables 16,303 592
ﬂ - Gold loan 8384 15,259
- Lease liabilitics 1.387 10.755
= Othier financial liabditics ihil 953
‘:b Totnl non-sherivative lubiliiey _a44ip2 WA
* This page has intentionally been leh blank*
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araiLane Trading Private Limited
ates to the standaline financial statements (or the year ended 31 March 2023

(il amonmis in INR Jakhs, anless otherwise stafed)

Financial instruments (continued)

365 Market risk )
The market risks to which the Company is exposed arc price risk and foreign currency risk

Price risk
i~ The Company is exposed lo Muctuations in gold price (including fluctuations in forcign currency) arising on purchase/ sale of gold
To manepe the variability in cash Nuws. the Campany cnters into derivative Tinancial instrumerts 1o manage the risk associated with gold price fluctuations relaling 1o all the highly probable forccasted tranaactions
Siich demative linancial instruments are primaniy in the nature of future commdity sentracts dnd farward forcign exchange coniracts. The risk management strategy against gold price fluctuation also inshudes
- peocuring eold on loan basis. with a fleaibility o fix price of gold at any tissie duririe the tenor of the loan.

Company's risk management stralcgy

As the value of the derivative instrument gencrally changes in response to the valuc of the hedged item, the i i ip is

.
The use of such derivative financial instruments is govermned by the Company’s policics approved by the Board of Dircctors, which provide written principles on the use of such instruments consisient with the
The following table gises details of contracts as at the end of the reporting year:

Fair value hedges Scll future contracts:

Average rate Quuntity of hedge .
(Per gram) instruments (KGS) ominaliEmaun

o 31 March 2023 Fair valte 5429 355 20,692
31 March 2022 Fair valuc 5173 11 569
-

Particulars Nature of Hedge

Cash Mow hedge
The Contpany aesesses the effechivencss al i desigrated hedpes by usingg (b same hodge ratio on that resuliing frems {1 quiantitics of the hedged item and the hedging instrument that the Company actually uscs.

Howaver, this hedge ratimwill be rehalaneed. when required (ie., when the hedpe ratio far nsk management purposes i 1o longer optimal but the risk management objective remains unchanged and he hedge continucs
o qpualify for hed e stcounting), sdjisting weightings of the hedged nzm and the hedging instruweni
oatees of hedge Inefectivences inclide mismateh in the weightings of the hed ped ltem anid the bedgng invmment and tie selling mte.

The linc item in the standalonc balance shect that include the above hedging instruments are other financial asscis and other financial liabilitics

- 1 As at March 312023 and March 31, 2022 the aggregate amount of gains under forwar contracls is gniscd in “Other C hensive Income” and accumulated in the cash fow hedging resenve Dulails of
noyements in hedging resenve is as follows:
N For the year ended For the year ended
. | Earticulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
A Balance at beginning of the year (net of axes) = 1
ctive poartion of cash flow hedges -
rechissificd 10 siandalone stalcment of profit aid loss e - (2

. Batanee ar-end ol the year frot of st

Fair value hedge
The Company designates derivalive conlracts Bs hedging instruments to mitigale the risk of change in fair valuc of hedged item duc to movement in gold prices. Changes in the fair saluc of hedging nstruments and
hedged items that are designated and qualify as fair valuc hedges are recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Thercfore. there will be no impact of the Mluctuation in the price of the gold on the Company’s profii for

the period

The tablc below shows the position of hedging instruments and hedged items as on the balance sheel date

s
I ; As al 31 March 2023 :

Commadity price risk Carrving value of Maturity date Impact of fair Disclosure in halance sheet
Hedged item Hedging Instrument salue hedype
Hedged item - fixed gold an a2 - - tnvemniones
Hedging instrument - derivatives - - 2 months . Other finanicial asscts/ other habilitics
J Asut 31 Murch 2023 :
. Commodity price risk Carrying valug of Maturity date Impaict of fair Disglogure in halunce sheet
Hedged itom Huedging instrument value hedge
_ Hedped item - fixed gold 571 - 2 Inventorics
Hedging instrument - derivatives . 2 2 months (2) Other financial asscts/ other liabilities

b\

Furcign currency risk management

The Company 1s cxposed to forcign exchange risk arising through its sales and purchascs denominated in various (oreign currencies

(i) The risk management strategy on forcign currency exchange Muctuation arising on account of purchase/ sale of gold is cov ered above

(iiy In respect of normal purchase and salc lransactions denominated in foreign currency. contracls arc measurcd at fair value thrgh the standalohe statement of profit and loss
The carrying amount of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monclary liabilitics at the cnd of the reparting vear are as follows:

v U

o Currency Linhilifies us ot Axvely s ut
31 Mureh 2023 31 March 3032 31 Murch 2023 31 March 2022
Inp 3 430 4374 1.K26

B

*Represeni amount |¢as tiem 1 lac

Foreign currency scnsitivity anal,

The Company is mainly exposed to USD, The Company's sensilivity 10 a 1% increase and decrease in the INR against the rclevant foreign currencies is presented below

(

The sensilivity analysis includes only outstanding forcign currency denominated monctary ilems and adjusts their translalion at the period end for a 1% change in foreign currency rates. There is an increase in profit or
equity by Rs 48.27 lakhs where the INR strengthens 1% against the reicyant currency. For a 1% wcakening of the INR against the relevant currency. there would be a comparable decrease in profit or cquity

In managemen's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because the exposurc at the cnd of the reporting period docs not reflect the exposure during Lhe year

; 37 Estimaled amount of contracts remaining Lo be exceuted on capital account and not proy ided for is Rs 1,048 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 155 lakhs)
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—ratLane Trading Private Limited
J1cx to the standalone financial statements for the year cnded 31 March 2023

1 amaonnts i INR Takhs, unless othenvise stated)

38  Financial Ratios

Ratio Numcrator Denominator 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 *, Variance Reasons
(a) Current ratio ‘Tetl current asscls Tetal current linbilitizs 1.02 L 1%l
. ) ekt consists of borrowings |
v Total ¢ el
(b) Debt-cquity ratio Jfont: term and short term) otal equity 2.57 .57 475 Refer note (a)
Profil before finance costs. Finance costs + Principal
(c) Debt service coscrage ralio deprezintion and amortisation | repayments during the 24.45% IRITS 35%| Refer note (b)
and tax venr
(d) Return on equily ratio Profit for the year Total cquity 46 40% 84.16% ~i5%% | Refer note (¢}
(¢) Inventory lumover rauo ot of goods sold Avemge Inventory 197 215 Bt B
(0 Trade reccivables wmoser ratio Hevenus from operations Avesuge lrade reccivables 7621 85.73 -
(g) Trade payables wmover mtio Derived purchases Average trade pavables 975 9.17 ).
(h) Net capilal tumover ratio Revenue from operations Working capilal 109,40 329 96 -67%| Refer note (d)
{i) Net profit ratio Profit before tax Revenue [rom operations 648% 3483% 6%%5| Refer note (c)
. it e < anndd fina
() Return on capital cemployed f:l foew s finenes Tital cquity 84% 597 4474 Refer note (¢)

* Financc costs primarily consists o intzrest on horroings and interest on lease finbilitiza

Notisi

(2) Delit-eqiiity ratio has mgreased vwing 1o increase in barrowtig i the current year compared (o previous year

(b) Debi-sorice coverags rtio incresvert mwing 1 licrease in berrowing in current ¥er

(c) Retwrm on equiey rel deercaved due 1o fncreane in wthl cquity piTsuant foInTreIse N profily,

(d) Met capital tumosr miio has impraved owing o bner working capital during the yeat and insreass in revenues by more than 75% as compared lo previous year
(¢) Net peafif ratio ind Returm on capitil coploved has inerzasal dus tn neresie In business operations.

Capital management

The Company's palicy 10 maintan 2 stable snd strong capltal snicture with a focus en total eguity T 53 10 MATLAIN |WVEHOE, creditors and market onfidence and Lo sustain future develepment and growth of its
frusiness. In order 1o meritain the cupited smustre, the Company wmomiiors the returm an capital. ax well ps level of dividends 1o cquity starehalders. The Compuny gims to manage its capital cfficianmy so as to safepuand
11 ahility o contitime #¢ a going eavicern amd 10 Optimize FUNAT 1o ail its sharchulders, For the pyrpose of the Compans's capital mingpement, capital inludes issucd capital and all oiher equity resenves and dichl i®
included as a part of borrowings and gold loan

Particulars At asial

31 Murch 2023 31 March 222
Tolal debt * 56.711 [R372
Total equity 22070 11.732
Dbt to cauity mtly 257 1.57

» Tolal debl includes only borrowings. Gold on loan and lease liabilitics has not been considered for the purposc of above

Othier ststatiry informustion ©

(1) The Company docs it have sy Férun property o mny procecding which is pendung aga.nst the Company for holding any Benami property.

(i) i Comppaeey o et have sy trarisactions with companics simck ofl

(1) The Coinpany do nol Kave any chrges or satisfction which is vei to be reaistered with Regisirar of Campanics beyond the statutory period.

{iv) The Campany hos noj troded of imvested in crypn currency or virtual eurrncy during the financial year

(v) The Company is nol classified as willful defaulter.

(vi) Th Company docsn't have any \ransaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act 1961
such a= seirch of survy

Loy flsritdy have b advanced of |oamed or invested (either from barowed funds or thare peemtinm orany eisr sources o kind of [unds) by the Company o or in any othe. person(s) or entity(is). including forcign
(Mmerediaries). with the undersianding. whether recorded 1n winktg of sthensise, thal ihe Injermadiary shall, directly or indirectly lend or imvest in other persons or cnlities identified in any manncr
whatszevet b or pn behall of the Company (“Ultimats Bencficiaries™) or provide sy puaranies. scturity or (e like on behalf of the Ultimate Bencficiarics

(viii) No funds have been reccived by the Company from any person(s) or entity(is). including forcign entities ("Funding Partics™). with {he undcrstanding. whether recorded in writing or olherwisc, that the Company
shall. dircctly or indircctly. lend or imvest in other persons o entitics identified in any manner whatsocver by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimale Bencficiarics™) or provide any guaranice. security or the like on
behalf of the Uhtimate Beneficiarics ’
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T itLane Trading Prvaie L irmitedd
sten ri vt stundalone fiaans ial stutements
caid amanats in INR Jukhs, 1aless otherwise stated)

‘1 Di closurc under wautian 186 of die Cor .panicy Act, 2013

far I ¢ yur caded 31 Marct, 2023

Investm :ri

investmen; sold/

3

(»

v

. = g As at As at
i N A relationsh P 2 juri i i i
Name of the entity aiuge of relationship arpose 1 April 2322 malc during the  impaired daring the 31 March 2023
yuar vEar
Irnvestments
I vext ent in cquity instruments 1. nquoted)
SiudioC Inc USA Subsidiary Sirtegic 199 . - 109
investment
sl Investment Investmant sold/ o
Name of the entily Naturc of relationship Purpose 1 April 202, made during the  impaired during the 31 March 2022
vear NURE
Investments
nvestment in equity instruments funquoted)
StudioC Inc USA Subs diary Strategic - 109 - 109
Fvestacit
i . . § . § g ; : Al X 5 3 Receipt during Asad
) Name of the entity Na Lre of relationship Secured/unsecuved Purposc Rate of intere 't Term | Agril 2022 Given during the yesr # P 31 Mareh 202
Luans
StudivC Inc. USA Sulssiduary Uasecured Business suppar Lo s n7 177 LR
o " g it n . i
Name of (he enlity Nalur-t of rclavienship Secured/ unsecurca Purpose Ralc of ir terest Term i ":‘\éz-“’-i Given during the year # RKI":::(‘:‘I::'"” 3 M::a':: |
Loas
. SwdiC lnc USA Stsidiary Unsecured Buciness suppot ™ 2 yars - 237 Azt
Brhckets represents nu mhrn y-cr ains ta provious jear.
= Inchodes e nsiatemtony i vl locn balance o b 440 tkhs
As per our rcporl of even dalc attached -
N i 1 T
for PSR & Co. LLP Jir and on Etall af e Pooatl of Directors )
Chartered Acro.ntants Ca;atLane Trading Pricate Lim ‘trd . .
Fumny registaajfon nember 101248W/ W-110022 (N US2393TH0ATYTCOMAIY / f 5
| 4 R
N
Ariun Raudafsh Mithu Padamn ﬂ'n/htli Ashek Kumac Sonthalia
Parimar Gt Director 5 Dircctor
Mrmberghip No. 11492 J!'SJ 015683592 DIN" 03259683
Plicz Bengalur Place Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Catc AprlZR. 2023 1 Date 4pril 28, 2023 Dauc: April 28, 2023
) Bhanmwat .r\l.\umi Duh (‘np%’
Y Chig Firanciol Officer ' '
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Chartered Accountants
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Off Intermediate Ring Road,

Bengaluru-560 071 India

ndependent Auditor's Report

To the Members of CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited (hereinafter referred
to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the
Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the consolidated statement of
profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to
as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the
consideration of report of the other auditor on separate financial statements of such subsidiary as was audited by
the other auditor, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2023, of its
consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of report of the other auditor referred to in paragraph (a} of
the “Other Matters” section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements.

 Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment and based on the consideration of report
of other auditor on separate financial statements of component audited by them, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Registered Ofiice:

BSR & Co (a partnership firm with Registration No BA61223) converled into BSR & Co LLP {a Limied Liability 14th Fleor, Central B Wing and North C Wing, Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco Center,
Partnership with LLP Registration No AAB-8181} with effect from October 14, 2013 Western Express Highway, Goregaon {East), Mumbai - 400063
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The key audit matter

The Group recognises revenue when the control of
goods being sold is transferred to the customer. A
substantial part of Group’s revenue relates to
jewelry which involves large number of individual
sales contracts having varied contractual terms
with retail customers, online customers and
franchisees.

The Group and its external stakeholders focus on
| revenue as one of the key performance indicators,
this increases the risk of misstatement of the
timing and existence of revenue recognized.

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

CaratLane Trading Private Limited

How the matter was addressed in our audit

In view of the significance of the matter, we applied the
following audit procedures, among others, to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence:

1.Assessed the appropriateness of the accounting policy
for revenue recognition as per relevant accounting
standard. |

2.We evaluated the design and implementation of key
internal  financial controls and their operating
effectiveness with respect to revenue recognition
transactions selected on a sample basis. These included
general IT controls and key application controls over the
IT systems which govern revenue recognition, including
access controls controls over program changes.

3.We perused selected samples of key contracts with
customers, distributors and franchisees to understand
terms and conditions particularly relating to acceptance
of goods.

4. We performed substantive testing of retail sales by
selecting samples of sales made at the retail outlets using
statistical sampling and tested the underlying
documents, which included tracing sales to collection
reports and bank statements. For sales (other than retail
sales), we performed substantive testing using statistical
sampling and tested the underlying documentation
including verification of invoices and collections thereon.

5.We tested, selected samples of sales transactions made
immediately pre and post year end, agreed the period of

: revenue recognition to the underlying documents.

6.We scrutinised manual journals posted to revenue to
identify unusual items.

Page 2 of 10
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

CaratLane Trading Private Limited

TSl T PP =01 T B 1))
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| The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group’s inventories primarily comprise high

value items like jewelry (gold, diamonds,
gemstones etc.). The Group holds inventory at
various locations including factories, stores (retail
outlets) and third party locations.

There is a significant risk of loss of inventory given
the high value and nature of the inventory

involved.

In view of the above, we have identified exsitence

| of physical inventories as a key audit matter.

In view of the significance of the matter we applied the
following audit procedures in this area, among others, to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence:

1.We evaluated the design, implementation and tested
the operating effectiveness of key controls that the
Group has in relation to safeguarding and physical
verification of inventories including the appropriateness
of the Group’s standard operating procedures for
conducting, recording and reconciling physical
verification of inventories and tested the implementation
thereof. I

2.We evaluated the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of general IT controls and key
application controls over the Group’s IT systems including
those relating to recording of inventory quantities on
occurrence of each transaction, including access controls,
controls over program changes, interfaces between
different systems.

3.For the sampled locations, we attended physical
verification of stocks conducted by the Group and
performed roll-forward procedures as at the year end,
where applicable. We also performed surprise stock
counts at selected stores on a sample basis. We also
checked on a sample basis reconciliation of inventories as
per physical inventory verification and book records.

4.For samples selected using statistical sampling, we
obtained independent confirmations of inventories held
with third parties. |

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s directors' report, but does not include
the financial statements and auditor’s report(s) thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

CaratLane Trading Private Limited

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the audit report of other auditor, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation
of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view
of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the
Act. The respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible
for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Management and Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilitie§ for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Caratlane Trading Private Limited

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consalidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of such entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entity included in the consolidated financial statements, which has been audited by other auditor, such other
auditor remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit carried out by them.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further described in
paragraph (a) of the section titled “Other Matters” in this audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entity included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

a.  We did not audit the financial statements of one subsidiary, whose financial statements reflect/ total assets
(before consolidation adjustments) of Rs.2,265 lakhs as at 31 March 2023, total revenues {before
consolidation adjustments) of Rs.5,298 lakhs and net cash flows (before consolidation adjustments)
amounting to Rs. 4 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditor whose report have been furnished
to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-section
(3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the report of
the other auditor.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to our reliance on the work done
and the report of the other auditor.
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| Report on Other Legal and Regﬁlatory Requiréments '

2A

independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

CaratLane Trading Private Limited

As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other
auditor on separate financial statements of such subsidiary, as were audited by other auditor, as noted in the
“Other Matters” paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a.  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books
and the report of the other auditor.

c. The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained
for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31
March 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, none of the directors of
the Holding Company is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Holding Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditor(s) on separate
financial statements of the subsidiary, as noted in the “Other Matters” paragraph:

a. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2023 on
the consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

b. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts during the year ended 31 March 2023.

c. Thereare no amounts which are required to be transferred to the investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Holding Company during the year ended 31 March 2023.

d (i) The management of the Holding Company incorporated in India whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the Note 38 (vii) to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Holding Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Holding Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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Independent Auditor’s Report {(Continued)

CaratLane Trading Private Limited

(i) The management of the Holding Company incorporated in India whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the Note 38 (viii) to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the Holding
Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company shall directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i} and (ii) above, contain any material
misstatement.

e. The Holding Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f.  As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Holding Company
only with effect from 1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the remuneration paid during the
current year by the Holding Company to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.
The remuneration paid to any director by the Holding Company’s not in excess of the limit laid down under Section
197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act
which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

£

Arjun Ramesh

Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 218495
Date: 28 April 2023 ICAl UDIN:23218495BGYWBX5388
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated Financial
Statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section

of our report of even date)

(xxi} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination, there are no
companies included in the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company which are
companies incorporated in India except the Holding Company. The Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2020 of the Holding Company did not include any unfavourable answers or qualifications or adverse
remarks.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

£

Arjun Ramesh

Partner

Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 218495
Date: 28 April 2023 ICAI UDIN:23218495BGYWBX5388
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the consolidated financial
statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Caratlane Trading Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company , as of that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company, has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2023, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established
by the Holding Company considering the essential components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Holding Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Holding Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsli.bil.ity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing,
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial
statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

9.

Axjun Ramesh

Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 218495
Date: 28 April 2023 ICAI UDIN:23218495BGYWBX5388
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Consolidated balance sheet

CaratLane Trading Private Limited

(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The accompanying notes are a
Ag per our report of even date

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chariered Accountants

Arjun
Partner
Membership No, 218495
Plage: Bengaluru

Dute: April 28,2023

Firm registration number: 101248W/ W-1 00022

*Represents amounts less than Rs, 1 lakh

n integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
attached

-far and on .bf.'\m!'f of the Bo ‘2}&1 of Directors of

Lanaging Director
DIN: 01683592
Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 28,2023

Manoj Bhanawat
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Bengaluru

Carati_nng'lamdmg Pn\
(CIN: U52 N"GO?I’T C064830)

te Limited

. As at As at
Particulars . 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5(i) 7,941 3,010
Capital work-in-progress * 5(iii) - 2
Right-of-use assets 5 20,153 7.417
Intangible assets 5(ii) 2,945 1,238
Intangible assets under development 5(iv) 98 530
Financial assets
1. Other financial assets 6 6,876 4,445
Deferrad tax assets (net) 7 1,403 5,098
Income tax assets (net) 7 215 115
(Other non-current assets 8 3.139 926
42,770 22,781
Current assets
Inventories 9 90,785 53,940
Financial assets
i, Trade receivables 10(i) 1,317 1,057
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 10(ii) 681 592
jii. Other bank balances 10(iii) 178 178
iv. Loan receivables 10(iv) 523 198
v. Other financial assets 10(v) 3,943 1,517
(Other current assets 11 12,984 8,891
110411 66373
153,181 89,154
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 667 665
Share application money i -
Other equity 13 18,334 10,137
19,002 10,802
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i, Borrowings 14(i) - 219
iia. Lease liabilities 14(ii) 23,099 10,293
iii. Other financial liabilities 14(iii) 362 312
Otler non-current liabilities 15 87 108
Provisions 151 693 674
24,241 11,606
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i Borrowings 16(i) 56,712 18,154
i, Gold on loan 16(ii) 20,931 23,643
iiia. Lease liabilities 16(iii) 3,363 1,849
iv Trade payables 16(iv)
(a) Total autstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 3,466 3970
(b) Total outsianding dues of creditors other than micro and 16,089 13,303
small enterprises
v. Other financial liabilities 16(v) 1,689 1,174
Other current liabilities 17 6,924 4,300
Provisions 18 764 353
109,938 66,746
153,181 §9,154
Significant accounting policies 3

L

Ashok Kumar Sonthalla
Director

DIN: 03259683

Place: Bengaluru

Date; April 28,2023

Compuny Secretary
P]ace Ben g,aluru
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Consolidated statement of profit and loss
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Revenue from operations 19 216,881 125,563
Other income 20 1.908 899
Total income (I) 218,789 126,462
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 160,642 93,498
Purchase of stock-in-trade 21 16,593 12,132
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress (36,783) (21,050)
Employee benefits expense 22 13,543 8,963
Finance costs 23 4,661 2,084
Depreciation and amortisation expense 24 4,561 2,664
Other expenses 25 43,637 24,299
Total expenses (IT) 206,854 122,590
Profit before tax (1) [(I)-(ID} 11,935 3,872
Tax expense (IV)

- Current tax 7 4 1
- Deferred tax 3,723 (5,058)
Profit after tax (A) [(IID-(IV)] 8,208 8,929
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit and

loss:

- Remeasurements of employee defined benefit plans (107) (157

- Income-tax on above 27 40
Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of foreign operations (105) 13
ltems that will be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss:

_ Effective portions of gains and loss on designated portion of hedging instruments in a cash - 2
flow hedge

Total other comprehensive income (B) (185) (103)
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) 8,023 8,827
Earnings per equity share (par value of Rs. 2 per share)

Basic earnings per share 24.65 26.85
Diluted earnings per share 26 24.49 26.67

3

Significant accounting policies

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 101248W/ W-100022

12

Arjun

mesh

Partner

Membership No. 218495
Pluce: Bengaluru

Date: April 28, 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Jor and on bchal_i‘oi'tl‘ie'B‘(mrd of Directors of
CaratLane Tyading Private Limited
/(CIN: Us:s%mznmm“ 5064830)

‘L

—~

hu\, n P,aué./r ofi AshoK K“m
fanading Director Director

DIN: 03259683
Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 28,2023

DIN: 01683592
Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 28, 2023

b .

Ahona Das
Company Secrelary
Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 28, 2023

Manoj Bhanawat upria
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Bengaluru

Date: April 28, 2023
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(4l amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended

31 March 2022

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax 11,935 3,872
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 4,561 2,664
Allowance for doubtful receivables and bad debts written off - 27
Interest income 6) (3)
[nterest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost (553) (566)
Deferred rental income and rent equalisation (186) (78)
Gain on sale of investment (net) 3) (33)
Finance cost 4,661 2,084
(Profit) / 1oss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) (38) (14)
Adjustment for foreign currency translation reserve - 13
Property, plant and equipment wrtitten off - 33
Intangible assets wrtitten off’ 20 -
Employee stock option expense 113 165
Operating profit before working capital changes 20,504 8,162
Change in operating assets and liabilities
(increase)/ decrease in trade receivables (260) (175)
(increase)/ decrease in inventories (36,845) (28,487)
(increase)/ decrease in loans receivable, financial and other assets (9,722) 4,278)
increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities 570 873
increase/ (decrease) in provisions 323 305
increase/ (decrease) in gold on loan and trade payables (430) 21,528
increase/ (decrease) in other liabilities 2.602 1.145
Cash generated (used in) operating activities before taxes (23,258) (927)
Income taxes paid (100) (19)
Net cash outflow (used in) operating activities (A) (23,358) (946)
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and intangible assets (8,911) (2.775)
under development
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 241 111
Purchase/sale of Mutual Fund investments, net = 1,285
Interest reccived 728 566
(Investment)/redemption in other bank balances - (11D
Lease payments received from sub-leases 1,086 614
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) (6,856) (310)
€. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment towards lease liabilities (5.080) (3,014)
Proceeds towards issue of share capital 65 22
Repayment from borrowings (366,645) (70,491)
Proceeds from borrowings 404.984 75,936
Interest paid (3.021) (1.100)
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 30,303 1,353
Net cash increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 89 97
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year (Refer note 10(iii)) 592 495
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (Refer note 10(iii)) 681 592
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Debt reconciliation statement in accordance with Ind AS 7
Borrowings
Opening balance 18,373 12,928
Repayment from borrowings (366,645) (70,491)
Proceeds from borrowings 404,984 75,936
Closing balance 56,712 18,373
Reconciliation of Lease liability
Opening balance 12,142 9.497
Payments made during the year (5,080) (3,014)
Non-cash changes 19,400 5.639
Closing balance 26,462 12,142
Significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
for BS R & Co. LLP for and"ijﬁféﬁ?xrufﬂ;é]@p of Direcyess of
Chartered Accountants CidratLane Trading Privaté Limited (-
Firm registration number; 101248W/ W-100022 (CIN: U5239 NZOO?PTC]R}G;IS}O)
. Wi -
.,Z ﬁ/ \_\ . /li\/’, :

Arjun {nmesh Mithug Padaim Sachét Ashok Kumar Sonthalia
Partner Mankging Director Director
Membership No. 218495 DIN: 01683592 DIN: 03259683
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 28, 2023 Date: April 28, 2023 Date: April 28, 2023

Manoj Bhanawat Ahona Das Gupt

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: April 28, 2023 Date: April 28, 2023
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CarntLane Trading Private Limited
C lidnted ¢ of ch i equity
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise staied)

A. Equity share capital

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022
As at March 31, 2023

B. Other equity

Amount
Balunce at the April 1, 2021 665
Changes in equity share capital during the year 0
665
Changes in equity share capital during the year i
667

—_—

Reserves wnd surplus
Other comprehensive income
g Lo = . Total
Particulars Securities Stock options Retained .
= . : Cash flow hedge| Foreign Currency Re-measurement of
premium outstanding account earnings A oo 2 e
reserve Tr Reserve | d benefit g
rﬁullln:e at the April 1, 2021 40,925 718 (40,390) 12y - 1z 1,123
Premium on shares issued during the year 53 (32) - . 3 3 22
Profit for the year - - 8,929 - - - 8,929
Employee stock option expense - 165 - - - - 165
Other gnrm:_[c!w:\sl\': incame lar the vear (net of taxes) - - - 2 13 (17 (162)
Tutnl comprehensive income for the vear 8,929 2 13 (117} 8.527
Balnnee as at March 31, 2022 40,978 851 (31.461) - 13 (244) 10,137
Balance as at April 1, 2022 40,978 851 (31,461) - 13 (244) 10,137
Premitm on shares issued during the year 163 (100) - - - = 62
[*rofit for the year - - 8,208 - - 8,208
{Emplovee stock option expense - 113 - - - . 113
Other compreliensive income for the year (net of taxes) - E (105} (80) (183}
‘Tolal comprehensive income for the yenr 8,208 - (105) {80} #.013
Balance as at March 31, 2023 41,141 864 {23.253) - (922) [326) 18.334
Sgmificant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date attached — /
fiir BSR & Co. LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Difectors of
(“harivrid Accountants /' CaratLane Trading Frivate L:*I/Hi ted
Firm registjation number: 101248W/ W-100022 | (CIN 152393 zump‘rcgu. any K/\
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Corporate information

CaratLane Trading Private Limited ("The Company") and its subsidiary (collectively, the “Group™), s primarily involved in manufactures and trading of
jewellery. Till 31 January 2023, the registered office of the address of the Group was 2nd,3rd & 4th Floor,No.32, Rutland Gate 2nd Street, Khader Nawaz
Khan Road, Nungambakkam, Chennai, Tamil Nadu - 600006

During the year ended 31 March 2023, with effect from 31 January 2023, the registered address of the Company has been changed to 727, Anna Salai,
Pathari Road Thousand Lights, Chennai TN 600006.

The Board of Directors approved the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 and authorised for issue on April 28, 2023

Basis of preparation and presentation

(i) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements comply in all material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 ('the Act') and other relevant provision of the act under going concern asssumption using the historical cost convention on an accrual basis except for
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values notified under the Act and Rules prescribed thereunder. (together hereinafter referred to as
<consolidated Financial Statements’ or ‘financial statements’)

(i) Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost convention except for the following items

a Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value

b. Share based payments that are measured at fair value

¢. Net defined benefit liability that are measured at fair value of present value of defined benefit obligations
d. Right of use assets and lease liabilities are measured at fair market value as per Ind AS 116,

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be
received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date-

(iii) Use of estimates, assumptions and judgement
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies on the reported amount of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Such estimates, assumptions and judgement are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as on the date of financial statements
The actual result may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively

Judgements
Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the consolidated
financial statements is included in the following notes:

_Note 28 — Leases — whether an arrangement contains a lease

- Note 29 — Measurement of defined benefit obligations - Key actuarial assumptions
- Note 31 - Contract asset and liability

Assumptions and estimation
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year ending 31 March 20123
is included in the following notes:

- Note 5 (i) — Useful life of the Property, plant and equipment;

- Note 5 (ii) — Useful life of the Intangible assets;

- Note 7 - Deferred tax assets - Valuation;

_Note 28 — Leases - Lease term and incremental borrowing rate

- Notes 29 — Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions,
- Note 31 - Contract asset and liability

- Note 33 - Contingent liabilities and commitments;

- Note 34 — Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(iv) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the group are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
group operates (i.e the “functional currency””). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ("Rs." or "INR"), which is the group's
functional and presentation currency and 1s rounded-off to the nearest lukh except when otherwise indicated

(v) Measurement of fair values
Certain accounting policics and disclosures of the group require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values and the valuation team regularly reviews significant
unobservable inputs and valuation adjusiments.

Fair values are categorised mto different levels i a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:
- Level |. quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habilities,

- Level 20 inputs other than quoted prices mneluded in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

- Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

When measuringthe fairyalue of an asset or a liability, the group uses observable market data as far as possible ~
[Fthe jiyplils used 10 |ﬂi'.-a§\|. e the Fair value of an asset or 4 hahility {all o a different levels of the fwir value hierarchy, then the fair w_;.'r(fﬁqia‘i;,i&yl'_feﬂ1cnl 15
categoriged in ks cnnréty n 1hr: same level of the fair value lerarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire mctmurgmg:m_(x T
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(vi) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements relate to CaratLane Trading Private Limited and entities controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Company has power over the entity, is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and has the ability to affect the
entity's returns by using its power over the entity.

The standalone financiai statements of the Company and its subsidiary have been combined on a line by line basis by adding together the book values of like
items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balances, intra-group transactions and unrealised profit or losses. These
financial statements are prepared by applying uniform accounting policies in use at the Group.

Entities controlled by the Company are consolidated from the date the control commences until the date control ceases.

The subsidiary company which are included in the consolidation and the Company’s holdings is StudioC Inc., the subsidiary is incorporated in the United
states of America and the ownership interest of the Company is 100% (Previous year:100%)

The financial statements of the subsidiary company which is included in the consolidation are drawn upto the same reporting date as that of the Company
i e March 31,2023, The financial statements of the subsidiary included in consolidation are audited by other auditors

Significate accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated Financial Statements unless otherwise

indicated

(i) Revenue recognition
.Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the group expects Lo

receive in exchange for those goods or services.

Sale of products
Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the customer.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, net of customer incentives, discounts, variable considerations, payments
made to customers, other similar charges, as specified in the contract with the customer. Additionally, revenue excludes taxes collected from customers,
which are subsequently remitted to governmental authorities.

Contract assets are recognised when there 15 excess of revenue eamed over hillings on contracts. Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only
act of invoicing 1s pending) when there 15 unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time 1s required, as per contractual terms Unearned and
deferred revenue (“contract liability”) is recognised when there is billings in excess of revenues. Advances received for services are reported as liabilities
until all conditions for revenue recognition are met,

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition,
+ The group’s contracts with customers could inciude promises to transfer multiple goods to a customer The group assesses the goods promised in a
contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract, Identification of distinct performance obligation involves judgement to determing

the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from such deliverables

- Judgement s also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could be either a fixed amount of customer|
consideration or variable consideration with elements such as volume discounts, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives. The fransaction
price is also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if the contract includes a significant financing component. Any consideration payable to the
customer is adjusted to the transaction price, uniess it 15 a payment for a distinct good from the customer The estimated amount of variable consideration 1s
adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that i1 1s highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will
not oceur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period

» The group uses judgement to determine an appropriate consolidated selling price for a performance obligation. The group allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligation on the basis of the relative stand-alone selling price of each distinct good or service promised in the contract Where
consolidated selling price is not observable, the group uses the expected cost plus margin approach to allocate the transaction price to each distinct

performance obligation

Interest income is recagnized as it accrues in the consolidated statement of profit and loss using effective interest rate method
Commission income is generally recognized when the related sale is executed as per the terms of the agreement

The group has determined that the revenues as disclosed in Note 19 are disaggregated into categories that depict how the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors,

i (a) Other income
Franchisee Signing Fees :Franchisee signing fees is recognised based on the franchisee stores opened during the year which varies based on the location. It

excludes taxes remitted to the government which are recovered from the Franchisee's.
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CaratLane Trading Peivate Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(ii) Property, plant and equipment
Items of Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchasc price/ acquisition cost, net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties
and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities). any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its
intended use, other incidental expenses and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying property, plant and equipment up to the date the
asset is ready for its intended use.

Subsequent expenditure on property, plant and equipment after its purchase / completion is capitalized only if such expenditure results in an increase in the
future benefits from such asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance

Advance paid towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet date is disclosed as capital advances under non-current assets
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Capital work-in-
progress comprises the cost of assets that are not ready for their intended use at the balance shect date

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful
lives. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred

The group identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of property, plant and equipment separately, if the component/ part has a cost which 1s
significant to the totdl cost of the property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset Leaszhoid
improvements are amortized over the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease period whichever is less.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised 1s derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are measured as the|
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of Property. plant and equipment and are recognized mn the consolidated statement of]
profit and loss when the Property, plant and equipment is derecognized

Significate accounting policies (continued)
(i) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation methods. estimated useful life and residual value
Depreciation is calculated using straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their estimated residual values, over the useful lives of assets which is as

follows:

Asset category Management estimate of Useful life as per
useful life schedule I1
Fumiture and fittings 10 years 10 years
Computer equipment 3 years 3 years
Computer server 6 years 6 years
Office equipments S years 5 years
Jewellery Machine 15 years 15 years
Vehicles S years 8 years
Mock jewellery 1 year 1 year
4 years or lease period

Leasehold improvements ) . Lease period
which ever is lower

Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during the period 1 proportionally charged
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above
best represent the period over which management expects (0 use these assets, Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption af
future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in

accounting estimates,

(iii) Intangible assets

(a) Internally generated : Rescarch and development

Expenditure on research activities is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as incurred
Development expenditure is capitalized as part of the cost of the resulting intangible asset only if the expenditure can be measured rcliably, the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benetits are probable, and the group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete
development and to use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it 1s recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset 15 measured at
cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses

(h) Amortization
Amortization is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values over their estimated uscful lives using the straight-

line method, and is included in depreciation and amortization in Statement of Profit and Loss.
The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Asset Useful life
Computer software 3 years
Caratlane portal 3 years

Amortization method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Significate accounting policies (continued)

(iv) Impairment

(a) Financial assets

The group recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial asscts which are not fair valued through the statement o
profit and loss. Expected credit loss is the difference between the contractual cash flows and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive, discounted
using the effective interest rate. Loss allowance for trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected
credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase n credit risk from initial recognition in
which case those are measured at lifetime ECL, as required. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that 1s required to adjust the loss allowance at
the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(b) Non-financial assets

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever cvents or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing. the recoverable amount (i.e the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the
value-in -usc) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset docs not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assels.
In such cases, the recoverable amount 1s determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impainment to)
be recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable
amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying|
amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in
prior years

(v} Leases

Group as a lessee

A contract 15, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration
To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the group assesses whether:

a. the contract involves the use of an identified asset:

b. the group has the right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period of use; and

¢. the group has the right to direct the use of the asset

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone prices of the lease components and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components

The group recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the
right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, adjusted for any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentzves received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of the costs to be incurred by
the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it 1s located

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability

The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or uscful life of nght-of-use
asset. The estimated uscful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment Right-of-use assets are
tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be rccoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the,
statement of profit and loss

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the leasc or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the incremental borrowing rate applicable to the entity within the group Generally, the|
group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the group. on a lease by lease basis, may
adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole. The lease payments shall
include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the group is reasonably certam to
exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lcasc term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.
The group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets. The group recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease

term

Group as a lessor

When the group acts as a lessor at the inception, it determines whether each lease 1s a finance lease or an operating leasc,
The group recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance lease,
finance income is recognised over the leasc term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the lease.
When the group is an intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lcase scparately. It assesses the lease classification of a
sub-lease with refercnce to the right-of-use asset ansing {fom the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease 1s a short -term lease
to which the group applies the exemption described above, then 1t classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease

If an arrangement contains a lease and non-lease components, the group applies Ind AS |15-Revenue to allocate the consideration in the contract

\
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited

(vi) Inventories

Cost comprises all costs of purchase

(vii) Foreign currency transactions a

The resultant exchange differences are

(viii) Taxation

off the recognized amounts and where

balance sheet date and reduced to the
income tax asset to be utilized

and unused tax losses can be utilized.

enactment date

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

3  Significate accounting policies (continued)

Inventories [other than quantities of gold for which the price is yet to be determined with the suppliers (Unfixed Gold)] are measured at the lower of cost
and net realizable value. The cost is determined as follows:

(i) Raw materials are valued at weighted average except solitaires which are valued at the cost of purchase.

(ii) Work-in-progress and finished goods (other than gold) are val ued at weighted average cost of production,

(iii) Traded goods are valued at weighted average / cost of purchase.

(iv) Gold is valued on first-in-first-out basis,

expenditure directly attributable to acquisition, Work-in-progress and finished goods include appropriate proportion of overheads

Unfixed gold is valued at the provisional gold price prevailing on the date of receipt of gold.
Net realizable value represent the estimated selling price for inventories less estimated cost of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Foreign exchange transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the respective transactions. Exchange differences arising on
foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the consolidated balance sheet date are translated at the exchange rates on that date,

Non-monetary assets and liabilities which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in foreign currency are translated at an exchange rate that
approximates the rates prevalent on the date of the transaction.

[ncome tax expense COMPrises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year. Current and deferred tax are
recognized m consolidated statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to 1tems that are recognized 1n other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive incone or directly 1n equity, respectively

a) Current income tax: Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities based on the taxable income for that year. The tax rates and tax taws used to compute the amount are those that are enaciced or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The group offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where 1t has a legally enforceable rignt to set

b) Deferred income tax: Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax 1s recognized on
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes,
except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that Is not a basiness combination
and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction. The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets 1s reviewed at tach

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for alt deductible temporzry differences, to the extent that 1t 1s probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred income tax assets are recognized for carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that there 15 convincing evidence that taxable profit will be available against which the carry forward of unused tax credits

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years 1n which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes

In tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities 1s recognized as an income OT €XpEnse in the period that includes the enactment or substantive:
i

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits

will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. .
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current 1 adsets against current tax liabilities and the

deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity

including duties and taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable by the group), freight inwards and other|

nd balances

recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss

it intends either to settle on a net basts, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously

extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Significate accounting policies (continued)

(ix) Employee benefits
i) Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, short-
term compensated absences and incentives etc., are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year in which the employee renders
the related scrvice.

ii) Defined contribution plan

All eligible employees receive benefit from provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan, Both the employee and the group make monthly
contribution to the fund. which is equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee's basic salary and including other fixed component not linked to|
the performance of employees. The group has no further obligations under this plan beyond its monthly contributions

iii) Post employment benefits

The group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan covering all eligible employees. The present value of obligation under such defined benefit plan 15
determined based on actuarial valuation carried at the year-end using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving
rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation 1s measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is
based on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date having maturity periods approximating the term of the related obligation.
The group recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset or liability Gains and losses through re-measurements ol
the net defined benefit liability / (asset) are recognized in other comprehensive income. In accordance with Ind AS, re-measurement gains and losses or
defined benefit plans recognized in OCI are not to be subsequently reclassified to consolidated statement of profit and loss. As required under Ind AS
compliant Schedule 111 the group transfers it immediately to retained earnings.

The plan provides a lump-sum payment to eligible employees at retirement or on termination of employment based on the salary of the respective employee
and the years of employment with the group. The gratuity liability is accrued based on an actuarial valuation at the balance sheet date, carried out by an

independent actuary

iv) Compensated absences

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services
are recognized as an actuarially determined liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date using the projected unit
credit method

(x) Employee stock option expense
The group measures compensatton cost relating to share-based payments using the fair valuation method n accordance with Ind AS 102, Share-Based

Payment. Compensation expense Is amortized over the vesting period of the option on a straight-linc basis over the requisite service period for each
separately vesting portion of the award as if the award was in-substance, multiple awards.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair valuc at the date when the grant 1s made using the Black-Scholes-Merton Model The
expected term of an option is estimated based on the vesting term and contractual life of the option. Expected volatility during the expected term of the
option is based on the historical volatility of similar companies Risk free interest rates are based on the government securities yield in effect at the time of

the grant

The cost of equity settled transactions Is recognized, together with a corresponding increase m share options outstanding account in equity, over the period
in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The income statement expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end
ol that period und is recognized in employee benefits expense. The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution mn the
computation of diluted eamings per share
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Significate accounting policies (continued)

(xi) Financial instruments
Recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to financial assets and liabilities [other]
than financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)] are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or liabilities, as appropriate on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to acquisition of financial assets or liabilities measured at
FVTPL are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair value, depending on the classification of financial
assets

A) Financial assets

Classification of financial assets:

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classificd at

(1) Amortized cost

(i) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT)
(iii) Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the group changes its business model for managingy

financial assets

(i) Financial assets carried at amoriized cost
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it 15 held within a business model whose objective 1s to hold the asset in order to collect

contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets al fair value through comprehensive income
A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 1o
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial assels at fair value through profit and loss
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categorics are subscquently fair valued through profit or loss

B) Financial liabilities: classification, subsequent measurement and derecognition:
Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method For trade and other payables maturing within one year,
from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
A financial liabilities which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently carried at fair value through profit or loss

Derecognition

Financial assets
The group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the right Lo receive the

contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or in which the
group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the finuncial asset.
If the group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognized,

Financial liabilities
The group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire The group also derecognizes a financial
liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different, In this case, a new financial liability based an
the modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liabihty extinguished and a new financial liability

with modified terms is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the consolidated balance sheet when, and only when, the group cutrently

has a legally enforceable right to sct off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liahility

simultancously
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

3 Significate accounting policies (continued)
(xii) Derivative financial instruments
a. Fair value hedge

exchange rates and commodity prices. Changes 1

criteria for hedge accounting.

b. Cash flow hedge
The Group usecs derivative financial instruments

use of such instruments consistent with the Group'

upon which it 1s recognised In the statement of

transactions The Group has followed cashflow he

(xiii) Provisions and contingent liabilities
a. General

Joss net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the

cost

b. Contingent liabilities

¢. Onerous contracts

(xiv) Cash and cash equivalents

investments with an original maturity at the date
equivalents

(xv) Consolidated cash flow statement

(xvi) Borrowing cost

incurred

With effect from | November 2021, the Group adopted fair value hedgs for the denvative contracts entered into and designated derivative contracts or non-
derivative financial liabilities as hedging instruments to mitigate the risk of change in fair value ol hedged item due to movement in interest rates, foreign

hedges are recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss with an adjustment to the carrying value of the hedged item. Hedge accounting s discontinued
when the Group revokes the hedge relationship, the hedging instrument or hedged item expires or Is sold, terminated, or exercised or no longer meets the

The Group designates derivative contracts as hedging instruments to mitigate the risk of change in fair value of hedged item i.e. fixed gold inventory due Lo
movement in gold prices. The Group also designated the trade payables pertaining to gold taken on loan from banks (‘unfixed gold’) as a fair value hedge 1o
the corresponding gold inventory purchased on loan

transactions. foreign currency tluctuations relating to certain firm commitments The Group has designated derivative financial instruments taken for gold
price fluctuations as 'cash flow' hedges relating to highly probable forecasted transactions

The use of derivative financial instruments 1s governed by the Group's policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written principles on the!

Hedging instruments are initially measured at fair value, and are re-measured at subsequent reporting dates. Changes in the fair valuc of these derivatives
that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash flows are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading hedging|
reserve and the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or 18 sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting For
forecasted transactions, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in hedging reserve is retained until the forecast transaction GCCuTs

accumulated in hedging reserve 1s recognised immediately to the statement of profit and loss
The Group has designated derivative financial instruments taken for gold price fluctuations as 'cash flow' hedges relating to highly probable forecasted

Provisions are recognized when the group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, 1t is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required (o settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When
the group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the expense relating to @ provision 1s presented in the consolidated statement of profit and

appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the pravision due to the passage of time 15 recognized as a finance

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may probably not require an outflow aof
resources, When there is a possible or a present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosurc is made

Provision for onerous contracts | e contracts where the expected unavoidable cost of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received under it, are recognized when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle a present obligation as a result of an obligating event based on a rliable estimate of such obligation

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand, demand deposits with banks and balances with banks. The group considers all highly liquid

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net loss before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals
or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows The cash

flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the group are segregated

Borrowing costs arc interest and other costs incurred n connection with borrowing of funds. The borrowing cost includes interest expense accrued on gold
on loan taken from banks. Borrowing costs attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use are capitalized as part of the cost of asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period 1n which they are

n the fair value of hedging instruments and hedged items that are designated and qualify as fair value

to manage risks associated with gold price fluctuations relating to certain highly probable forecasted

s risk management strategy

profit and loss. If a'hedged transaction 1s'no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss

dge for hedging contracts taken till 31 October 2021

time value of money 1s material, provistons are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when

of purchase of threc months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statcments

Significate accounting policies (continued)

(xvii) Earning per share

Basic earning per share is computed by dividing the net loss after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted

loss per share is computed by divi

and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Diluted camings
per share 1s computed using the weighted-average number of equity and dilutive equivalent shares outstanding during the year, using the treasury stock
method for options, except where the results would be anti-dilutive. The diluted potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the
shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of
the beginning of the period, uniess issued at a later date

{xviii) Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported 1
of Directors of the group assesses

The group operates 1n onc segment only i.e. Jewellery, The CODM evaluates the group's performance based on the revenue and operating income from the

sale of Jewellery. Accordingly, no

In terms of geographical segment, since the group operates only in India, there 1s only one geographical scgment, 1.€ India. Accordingly, no additional
disclosure has been made for geographical segment information.

Recent pronouncements:

Mimistry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as issued from tume to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1,2023. as below:

Ind AS | — Presentation of Financial Statements
The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy

information, together with other

financial statements, The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in 1ts financial statements.

Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes

The amendments clanfy how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments

narrowed the scope of the recogn

that, on initial recogaition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The Company 1s evaluating the impact, it any, in its financial

statements.

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates The defimtion of a change n accounting estimates

has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts In financial statements

that are subject to measurement
measured in a way that involves
statements

ding the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic loss per share

n a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM'). The Board
the financial performance and position of the group The Managing Director has been identified as the CODM

additional segment disclosure has been made for the business segment

information, is material when 1t can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose

ition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to transactions

uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates If accounting policies require items 1n financial statements to be
measurement uncertainty The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts in INR-akhs, unless othenwise stated)

5 Right of use assets*

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Owned assets

Buildings

As at April |

Add : Additions

Less : Modifications / Terminations
As at March 31

Accumulated amortisation

As at April 1

Add : Amortisation Expenses

Less : Modifications / Terminations

As at March 31

Net carrying value
*Also refer note 28

6 Other financial assets

1,121 6,739
16,298 4,382
2387 -
25,032 11,121
2,579 2,252
2,570 1,453
270 .
1,879 3.705
20,153 7416

Particulars

As at
31 Murch 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Pvecnred. considered good
Security deposits

Lease receivables (Refer note 28)
Other deposits

2,168 944
4,698 3,482

10 19
6,876 4,445

-
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CaratlLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the 1st
(A1l amounis in INR lakhs, unless othenvise stated)

(TR s 4

Income tax

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabilities):

A As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Deferred tax assels 1,403 5,098

1403 5!098

Recognised in the Recognised in
Particulars Asia statement of profit and i —
1 April 2022 loss comprehensive 31 March 2023
income

Deferred tax assets
Provision for doubtful trade receivables 1 6 17
Property, plant and cquipment 218 (73) 145
Employee benefits 233 86 27 346
Lease liabilities (net of Right-of-use assets) 156 84 = 240
Carryforward of losses and unabsorbed depreciation 4,480 (3,901) 579
Provision for property, plant and equipment - 29 29
Provision for warranty - 47 47

5,098 (3,723) 27 1,403

Recognised in the Recognised in
Particulars Sl statement of profit and other T
1 April 2021 + loss comprehensive 31 March 2022
mcome

Deferred tax assets

Provision for doubtful trade receivables

Property, plant and equipment

Employee benefits

Lease liabilities (net of Right-of-use assets)
Carryforward of losses and unabsorbed depreciation

11

11

- 218 - 218
= 193 40 233
= 156 - 156
= 4,480 = 4,480
2 3,058 40 5,098

Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31. 2022

Income tax expenses

Current tax

Deferred tax

Income tax included in other comprehensive income on:

- Remeasurement of employee defined benefit plans

- Effective portion of gains and loss on designated portion of hedging instruments in a cash
flow hedge

Tax expense for the year

The reconciliation between the provision of income tax and amounts computed by applying the Indian statutory income &

4 i
3,723 (5,058)
()] (40)
3.700 (5.097)

ax rate to profit before taxes:

For the year ended

For the year ended

LT 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit before tax 11,935 3,872
Enacted income fax rate in India 25 17% 25.17%
Computed expected tax expense 3,004 975
Effect of:
Effect of deferred taxes on carryforward losses, unabsorbed depreciation and others not - (6,032)
recognised in earlier year
Effect of utilisation of carryforward losses and unabsorbed depreciation against current years 209 -
profit
Ineligible ltems 510 -
Income tax expense T d in the stat t of profit and loss 3,723 (5,057)

Note : From the Assessment Year 2022-23 relevant to the previous year 2021-22, the Company has elected to exercise the option permitte
1961 after satisfying the conditions contained in section 115BAA(2) as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 201
Minimum alternative Tax (MAT') under the provision for income tax for the previous year ended 31 March 2023 and computed deferred ¢

primarily (or the carried forward losses.

d under section 115BAA(1) of the Income-tax Act,
9. Accordingly, the Company has not recognized
ax based on the rate prescribed in the said section
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Al amounis in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

d) The following table provides the details of income tax assets and income tax liabilities as of 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022:

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Income tax assets (net) 215 115
Current tax liabilities (net) - -
Net current income tax assets at the end of the year 215 115
Particulars At St
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Net current income tax assets at the beginning of the year 115 96
Income tax paid 127 49
Refund received during the year * 27 30
Net current income tax assets at the end of the year 215 115

* During the year ended 31 March 2023, refund had been received for Assessment Year 2021-22 of Rs.29.84 Lakhs including Interest on refund amounting to Rs 2,46 Lakhs

Other non-current assets

Particulars Asiat e
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances 671 168
Deferred rental deposit 124 115
Balance with government authorities (Refer Note 11 below) 2.344 643
3,139 926
Inventories
Particulars I LR
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Raw materials 12,545 12,483
Work-in-progress 1,289 1,078
Finished goods 61,835 32,649
Stock-in-trade 15,116 7,730
90,785 53,940

(i) The cost of goods sold recognised during the year is INR 140,452 lakhs (previous year: INR 84,580 lakhs).

(ii) The cost of mventories recogfised as an expense includes INR 10.26 takhs (previous year: INR 5 Takhs) in respect of write down of inventory to
net-realisable value.

(iii) The inventory includes gold purchased on loan from banks amounting to INR 20,931 lakhs (previous year: TNR 23,643 lakhs). Also refer notes
16(ii)

(iv) Inventories includes 775 kg of Gold out of which 767 kg are hedged through gold loan from bank and future contracts and 8 kg are unhedged as
at 31 March 2023.

(vi) There are no goods-in-transit as at 31 March 2023 (Previous year: Rs. Nil)

(v) Refer paint 3(vi) under significant accounting policies for mode of valuation.

10 Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables

Particulars e justat

R 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Unsecured

Trade receivables, considered good 1,285 1,024

Receivables from related parties (Refer note 27) 32 33

Less: Allowance for doubtful tade receivables = =
1,317 1,057

Trade reccivables, credit impaired * 43

Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables = 43
1,317 1,057
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Notes to the st
(A1l amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(a) Ageing of receivables :

Asat 31 March 2023

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 months # 6 months - > 1 year
1 year
1,208 109 -

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables ~ which have significant increase in credit risk
(iii} Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Tride Receivables - credit impaired

1,208 109 -

Total

# includes amount not due
* The outstanding amount for more than a year to 2 year amounts to Rs. Nil, more than 2 year to 3 year amounts to Rs. Nil and for more than 3 years amounts to Nil.

As at 31 March 2022:

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 months # 6 months - >1 year
1 year

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 871 186 -
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk - - -
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables ~ credit impaired - 3 40
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk - - -
(vi} Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - -
Tatal 871 189 40

# includes amount not due
* The outstanding amount for more than a year to 2 year amounts to Rs. 28 lakhs, more than 2 year to 3

to Rs. 7 lakhs.

year amounts to Rs. 5 lakhs and for more than 3 years amounts

(b) Movement in the expected credit loss allowance :

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
43 43

(43) -

Balance at the hoginning af the year
Provision created during the year
Bad debts written off during the year
Balance at the end of the year
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the 1
(All amounis in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Tdated £ 3 ¢

Financial assets (continued)

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

Parti As at As at
articulars
31 March 2023 31 Murch 2022
Cash on hand 110 64
Balances with banks :
(i) in current account 571 499
(ii) in EEFC account - 29
681 592
(iii) Other bank balances
. As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deposits with original maturity of more than three months = 2
Deposits under Lien * 178 176
Total 178 178
* Pertains to deposits with bank for duty free gold purchases which are intended to be exported and deposits given for indirect tax related notices.
(iv) Loans receivable
Particulars Asiat ASHE
31 Muarch 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured, considered povd
Employee loans 523 198
523 198
(v) Other financial assets
. As at As at
el 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Lease receivables (Refer note 28) 649 625
Security deposits 85 320
fnterest accrued on fixed deposits 20 6
Accrued income 59 -
Other receivable (Refer note (a) below) 611 510
Margin money for gold future contracts 2,519 56
3.943 1.517
Note :
(a) Balance pertains to amount receivable from franchisee's towards day to day expenditure.
Other current assets
Particulars Asiat Agiat
31 March 2023 31 Muorch 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Balance with government authorities (Refer Note (a) below) 10,911 7,511
Prepayments 707 330
Contract assets (Refer note 31) 339 264
Other assets 8 -
Advance to suppliers 1,019 916
Less : Allowance towards advance to supplier - (13n
12,984 8,891

Note:

(a) Balance with government authorities represents current and non-current GST credits of Rs. 13,255 lakhs (Previous year: Rs.8,1 54 lakhs) in respect to GST input credit,

transitional credit and deemed credit.

(b) Contract asset represents the amount of goods expected to be received by the Company on account

* This page has intentionally been Teft blank*

of sales retum. Also, refer disclosure made under note 31
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Nates to the consolidated financial statements
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

12 Share capital

. As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Particulars
No of shares Amount No of shares Amount

Authorised share capital

Equity share of Rs, 2 each with voting rights 49,953,234 999 49,953 234 999
Total authorised share capital 49,953,234 999 49,953,234 999
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity share capital

Equity share of Rs. 2 each with voling rights 33,345,841 667 33,270,052 665
Total issued share capital 33,345,841 667 33,270,052 665

(i) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 2 Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share The dividend proposed by

the Board of Directors is subject to approval by the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

(ii) Shares reserved for issue under Employee Stock Option Scheme
During the financial year 2017-18, the Company introduced Caratlane Stock Option Plan 2017 (‘the Plan'). This Plan supersedes the following stock options and stock
option pluns

a. Exceutivé Management Stock Option Scheme 2009

b. CaratlLane Trading India Private Limited Stock Option Scheme for Consultants, 2013
¢. Senior Management Stock Option Scheme, 2012

As per the plan, Board of Directors grants options to the employees of the Company. The vesting period of the option is one to four ycars from the date of grant.
Options granted under the Scheme can be exercised within a period of six years from the datc of vesting. For employees leaving the organization, an option can be
exerctsed within 3 months from the date of resignation

During the year the Company granted 2,500 options to employee

A maximum of 714,017 options are issuable under this plan. The movement in options issued are as below:

Particulars For the year ended ave:):ll;eg:):z‘ricise For the year ended Weighted average
31 March 2023 piice 31 March 2022 exercise price
Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 574,000 174 552,000 150
Options granted during the year 2,500 474 43,000 474
Options forfeited during the year (9.000) 302 (2.600) 295
Options exercised during the year (75,789) 79 (18,400) 135
Qutstanding at the end of the year 491,711 188 574,000 174
Options exercisable at the end of the year 379,711 133 424,900 106

Fair value measurement
The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black-Scholes-Merton Model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the share price at

grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option.

The key inputs used in Black-Scholes-Merton Model for calculating fair value of options under the scheme as on the date of grant arc as follows:
The weighted average remaining contractual life of the options outstanding as of March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 under the CaratLane stock Options Plan was 6
years and 7 years respectively

The fair value of the options is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton Model with the following assumptions:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
No. of options granted 2,500 43.000
August 1, 2022 July 28,2021

Date of grant

Vesting period For 1,375 options

immediate vesting and

1,125 graded vesting 4years

over 4 years
Dividend yield (%) = |
Volatility rate (%) 3371% -
Risk free rate (%) 7.21% 6,05%
Expected life of options (years) 5.5 24
1,128 609

Weighted average fair value per share (Rs.)
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
g | (Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless cthenvise stated)

12 Share capital (continued)

A (ii) Shares reserved for issue under Employee Stock Option Scheme (continued)

The stock price of the Company is arrived using the discounted cashflow. Implied volatility is the unit at which the price of shares of peer listed companies has fluctuated
during the past period. The expected time to maturity/ expected life of the options is the period for which the Company expects the options to be alive, which has been taken as
=S 10 years subject to adjustment of time lapses from the date of grant. The risk free rate cansidered for calculation is based on the vield on Government Secutities for 10 years as
on the date of valuation,

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company recorded employce compensation of Rs 113 lakhs (Previous year : Rs. 165 lakhs) in the consolidated statement of profit

- and loss towards options granted / forfeited / expired. Refer note 22 for further details
e (ili) Reconciliation of the shares outst ding at the beginning and at the end of the year
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Amount Amount
No. of sh No. of sh
) 0-OIShArES | ge. In akhs 0. OTShATSS | Re: In lakhs
Equity shares with voting rights
Al the beginning of the year 33,270,052 665 33,251,652 665
& Add: Tssue of shares pursuant to options being exercised by employees 75,789 2 18,400 0
= At the end of the vear 33,345,841 667 33,270,052 665
; iv) Details of sharcs held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
> Particulars Yo %
i No. of shares held . No. of shares held .
holding holding
FEquity shares with voting rights
Mr. Mithun Padam Sacheti 3,835,327 11.50% 3,835,327 11.53%
v Mr. Siddhartha Padam Secheti 3,700,000 11.10% 3,700,000 11.12%
Mr. Padam Sacheti 1,655,000 4.96% 1,655,000 4.97%
Titan Company Limited {Reler Nate 1) 24,036,325 72.08% 24,036,325 72.25%
9 Total 33,226,652 99.64% 33,226,652 99.87%
i (v) Shareholding of promoters
9 As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
P t % i % Ch duri
romoternsme No. of Shares | % of total shares % Change during No. of Shares | % of total shares % Change during
the vear the vear
Titan Company Limited (Refer Note 1) 24,036,325 72.08% - 24,036,325 72.25% -
Mr Mithun Padam Sacheti 3,835,327 11.50% - 3,835,327 11.53% -
Mr Siddhartha Padam Sacheti 3,700,000 11.10% - 3,700,000 11.12% -
Mr. Padam Sacheti 1.655,000 4.96% - 1,655,000 4.97% -
Note :

| Includes shares held by directors jointly with Titan Company Limited and Nominee Directors
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
13 Other equity
Particulars ASTAR As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Securities premium 41,141 40,978
(Amonnts received on issue of shares in excess of the par value has been classified as securities premium)
Stock options outstanding account 864 851
(Shares granted to emplovee under employee stock option plan)
Retained earnings (23,253) (31,461)
(Retained carnings comprise of the Company's prior years’ losses after tax)
Foreign currency translation reserve (92) 13
(Represents reinstatement of foreign currency balances of subsidiary)
Other compreliensive income (326) (244)
(Reprosents actearial gam or loss on remcasurement of net defined benefit liability and effective portions of gains
anted o eni disignated portion of hedging nistrionents in a cash flow hedge)
18,334 10,137
14 Financial liabilities - Non Current
i. Borrowings
Particulars Asiat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
At amortised cost:
Secured
Long-term borrowings (Term loan)* 219 876
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (219) (63T)
- 219
* Secured against the Corporate Guarantee issued by Titan Company Limited at an interest rate of 0.5% per annum
The effective interest rate of the term loan was 7.02% per annum and is payable over 48 equal monthly installments beginning from 1 June 2019 Current revised rate as per
the bank is 7.9% from March 2023. A repayment of Rs.219 lakhs of the principal amount was made during the year
ii. Lease liabilities
Particulars As at As at
feuta 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Lease liabilities |refer note 28] - Non Current 23,099 10,293
23,099 10,293
iii. Other financial liabilities
Particul As at As at
aEticrlars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Rental deposit 362 2
362 312
15  Other non-current liabilities
. As at As at
Basticnlags 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred rental deposit [refer note 28] 87 108
87 108
15.1 Provisions
Particul As at As at
I 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for gratuity [Refer note 29] - Long Term 693 499
Provision for compensated absences [Refer note 29] - Long Tenn - 175
693 674
e
0.,
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oy
16  Financial liabilities
:‘ i. Borrowings
. As at As at
Particul
= artiewars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Secured
e Bank overdraft and cash credit [refer note 1 below] 33,238 2,632
3 Current maturities of long term borrowings* 219 657
P Unsecured
Bank overdraft and cash credit (Unsecured) 1,993 -
Commercial paper [refer note 32] 21,262 14.863
o 56,712 18,154
=
.

Notes :
* Refer Note 15(i)

ii. Gold on loan

1. Secured against the Company's inventory, receivables and movable fixed assets on pari
annum and is payable at monthly intervals. The overdraft is payable on demand.
2 'The Company has filed statements as at the quarter end with the banks which are in agreement with the books of accounts as at respective quarter ends.

-passu basis. The interest rate on the overdraft varies from 4.3% to 8.6% per

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Secured
Payable to banks*

& € @ € U

the date of the delivery of gold.

iii. Lease liabilities

20,931

23,643

20,931

23,643

*Secured against inventory and receivables. Includes amounts payable against gold purchased from various banks under gold on lo
on loan varies from 2 25% to 2.6% per annum as at 31 March 2023 and is payable at monthly intervals. The credit period under the

an scheme. The interest rate of the gold
aforesaid arrangement is 180 days from

v

@ O

Particulars

31 March 2023

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Lease liabilities [refer note 28] - Current 3,363 1.849
3,363 1,849
iv. Trade payables
As at As at

31 March 2022

Trade payables

Outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises [Refer note (a) below]
Outstinding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

- Creditors for goods

- Creditors for services

v

3,466 3,970
8,087 8,689
8,002 4614
19,555 17273
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“a
(a) Ageing of Trade Payables :
’_A As at 31 March 2023:
Outstanding for following periods from due
2 Particulars date of payment
Less than | year # Mure than 1 year®
{1) MSME 3,462 4
(11) Others 15,957 132
- (iii) Disputed dues - MSME = _
(iv) Disputed dues — Others - N
19,419 136
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Nates to the consolidated financial statements
(il amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

# includes amount not duc

MSME and Rs. 16 Lakhs for others and for more than 3 years amounts to Rs. Nil for MSME and Rs. Nil for others

As at 31 March 2022:

* The outstanding amount for more than a year to 2 ycar amounts to Rs 4 lakhs for MSME and Rs. 116 lakhs for others, More than 2 year to 3 years amounts to Rs. Nil for

Outstanding for following periods from due
date of payment

Less than 1 year # More than 1 yvear*

(i) MSME 3,961 9

(11} Others 13,242 61
(1if} Disputed. dues - MSME - -
(iv) Disputed dues — Others - -

17,203 70

# includes amount not due

MSME and Rs, 11 Lakhs for others and for more than 3 years amounts to Rs. Nil for MSME and Rs. 18 Lakhs for others,

(b) Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006:

on the basis of information available with the Company and has been relied upon by the auditors,

* The outstanding amount for more than a year to 2 year amounts to Rs. 9 lakhs for MSME and Rs. 32 lakhs for others, Morc than 2 year to 3 years amounts to Rs, Nii for

There are no material dues owed by the Company to Micro and Small enterprises, which arc outstanding for more than 45 days during the year and as at 31 March 2023
This intormation as required under the Micro, Small and Mecdium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified

As at

rticul
e 31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

(a) the principal amount and the interest due thercon remaining unpaid to any supplicr at the end of each accounting
year-

- Principal

« Interest
(b the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of scctioa 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises -
Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2000), along with the amount of the payment mmade to the supplicr beyond the appointed
day dunnyg cach accountmg year;
(¢) the amournt of interest duc and payable for the period of delay in making puyment (which has been paid but beyond -
the appointed: day durng the ycar) but without adding the interest speeified under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006;
(d) the amount of interest acerued and remmning unpaid at the end of each accounting year, and -
() the amount of further interest remaimmg due and payable even 10 the succeeding years, until such date when the -
interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expendilure
under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

3,466

3,970

S

3,466

3,970

Dhas been relicd upon by thie zuditors

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such partics have been identificd on the basis of information collected by the Management. This

A
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Naotes to the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

L]
v. Other financial liabilities
=Y
. As at As at
Particul
artieutars 31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
[ Capital creditors 217 ER]
Employee payables 1,472 953
1,689 1,174
=
) 17 Other current liabilities
- As at As at
3= Parti
bl 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred rental deposit 22 27
- Statutory dues 624 350
Contract liability (Refer note 31) 512 382
- Deposit from franchisee 40 45
~ Advance from customers 5,726 3,495
= 6,924 4,300
‘; 18  Provisions
) As at As at
P
v articulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 29) 181 130
Provision for compensated absences (Refer note 29) 389 118
(9 Provision for Income Tax 2 -
Provision for warranty 192 105
764 353
: Note a: Provision for warranty
‘-:Q Movement below is for provision of warranty during the year
. As at As at
e 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening bilance 105 60
"a Provisions made during the year 158 93
Utilsations / reversed during the year (71) (48)
D Provision at the end of the year 192 105

o

* This page has intentionally been lefl blank®
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

19 Revenue from operations

For the year ended

Particulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Export 275 3,749
Domestic 216,606 121,812
Sale of products 216,881 125,561
Other operating revenue - 2
216,881 125,563

For the year ended

The reduction towards variable consideration comprises of scheme discounts, incentives etc.

20 Other income

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Contracted price 255,355 148,553
Reduction towards variable consideration 38,474 22,992
Revenue recognised 216,881 125,561

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

21 (a) Cost of material consumed

Franchisee signining fees 360 95
Deferred rental income 131 69
Rent deposit equalization 55 9
Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost (Refer Note 28) 553 566
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (Net) 38 14
Net gain on sale of current investments 3 33
Miscellaneous income 768 113

1,908 899

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 Mareh 2022

Inventories of raw materials at the beginning of the year 12,483 5,047
Add: Purchases 160,704 100,933
Less: Inventories of raw materials at the end of the year (12,545) (12483)
160,642 93,498
21 (h) Purchases of stock-in-trade

For the year ended

Eavticulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Purchases of traded goods 16,593 12,132 |
16,593 12,132




2

by

‘¥

¢ @ U

4« U w U &

¢ v

J ¢ @

@«

-

e e

@

22

23

24

('aratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(il amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

21 (c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Finished goods
- Closing stock
- Opening stock

Work-in-progress
- Closing stock

- Opening stock
Stock-in-trade

- Closing stock

- Opening stock

Increase in inventory

Employee benefits expense

61,835 32,649
32.649 14,147
29,186 18,502
1,289 1,078
1,078 486
211 592
15,116 7,730
7.730 5.773
7,386 1,957
(36,783) (21,050)

For the year ended

BFcolan 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Salaries, wages and bonus 11,911 8,013
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 29) 328 231
Staff welfare expense 1,191 554
Employee share based payment expense (Refer Note 12) 113 165
13,543 8,963

Finance cost

For the year ended

S R 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest on borrowings 3,004 1,093
[nterest on lease liabilities 1,640 984
Others 17 7

4,661 2,084

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 5(i) 1,180 674
Depreciation of right of use asset (Refer Note 5) 2,570 1,453
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer Note 5(ii)) 811 537

4,561 2,664
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

25 Other expenses

For the year ended

Fa 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Advertising 17,154 9,789
Agent commission 13,736 7,583
Rent (Refer note 28) 506 122
Freight and forwarding 2,047 1,598
Travelling and conveyance 824 311
Professional service charges 3,641 1,518
Bank charges 809 669
Software expenditure 1,571 914
Allowance for doubtful advances - 1
Bad debts written off (net of provision) - 26
Power and fuel 365 183
Communication expenses 118 104
Rates and taxes 216 65
Director sitting fee (Refer note 27) 29 33
Repairs and maintenance 774 422
Payments to auditors (Refer note below) 79 47
Provision for Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer Note 25.1) 18 -
Property, plant and equipment written off 96 33
Intangible assets wrtitten off’ 20 -
Stores and consumables 264 168
Royalty (Refer note 27) 322 191
Miscellaneous expenses 1.048 522
43,637 24,299
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes :
25.1 Corporate Social Responsibility:

(if) Amount spent during the year on:

(i) Gross amount required to be spent towards corporate social responsi

bility by the Company during the year: Rs. 17 Lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

2. Amount of expenditure incurred on:
-Construction/acquisition of any asset
- On purposes other than above

3. Excess/(Shortfall) at the end of the year

4. Total of previous years shortfall '

5. Reason for short fall

6. Nature of CSR Activities

(iii) CSR Contribution to Related parties

1. Amount required to be spent by the company during the year

17

Health, Education,
Skill development,
Disaster relief, Wellness
and Water,
Sanitation and Hygiene,
Entrepreneurship

Not Applicable

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Related Parties
Unrelated parties

18

25.2 Payment to auditors

For the year ended

Rartcwers 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
For statutory audit 28 30
For tax audit 2 2
For limited review 48 14
Reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses 1 1
79 47
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Naotes to the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise siated)

Earnings per share

Reconciliation of basic and diluted shares used in computing per share

Particulars

For the vear ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Basic and diluted profit per share
Profit after tax

Number of weighted average shares considered for calculation of basics earning per share

Add : Dilutive effect of stock options

Number of weighted average shares considered for calculation of diluted eaming per share

Earning per share

Nominal value of share (in INR)
Earnings per share - Basic (in INR)
Eamnings per share - Diluted (in INR}

Related party disclosures

a) Holding company

b) Enterprises in which Key Management Personnel or relative of
Key Management Personnel has significant influence

¢) Key management personnel

d) Subsidiary

8,208 5928

33,296,665 33,260,005

213,09 225978

33,509,761 33,485,984
2 2

24.65 26.85

2449 26.67

Titan Company Limited

Not A Box, Partnership Firm

Freshworks Inc.

Microgo, LLP

Luxury Online Retail Private Limited

Jaipur Gems and Handicrafts Private Limited
Starfire Gems Private Limited

M/s Yashrey

Titan Commodity Trading Limited

Mr. Mithun Padam Sacheti, Managing Director

Mr Bhaskar Bhat, Non-executive Director

Mr. Ashok Kumar Sonthalia (w.e.f. 26 April 2021)

Mr. C K Venkataraman, Non-executive Director (w.e.f 22 December 2022)

Mr. Subramaniam Somasundaram, Non-executive Director (Resigned w.e.f 27 April 2021)
Mr. Haresh Ram Chawla, Independent Director (w.e.f 10 July 2021)

Mr, Sandeep Anant Kulhalli, Non-executive Director (Resigned w.e.f 9 November 2022)
M. Ajoy Hiro Chawla, Non-executive Director '

Mr. Mathrubootham Rathnagirish, Independent Director (Resigned w.e.f 27 April 2021)
Ms, Neelam Chhiber, Independent Director

Mr Manoj Bhanawat, Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Ahona Das, Company Secretary

Mr. Neeraj Rawat, Director

StudioC Inc

Transactions with the related parties during the year are set out in the table below:

t d
Name of the related party Nature of transaction For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Jaipur Gems and Handicrafts Private Limited Sale of goods 980 1
Reimbursement of expenses - Payable 12 7
Sales of Property, plant & Equipment - 0
Mithun Padam Sacheti Director’s remuneration 262 182
Manoj Bhanawat Chief financial officer remuneration 102 76
Ahona Das Gupta Remuneration 18 13
Neeraj Rawat Remuneration 11 -
Starfire Gems Private Limited Purchase of goods 113 398
Sale of Goods - 28
Rent payable 22 25
Reimbursement of expenses = 2
Titan Commodity Trading Limited Commodity Trading Transactions 509 -
Cash Margin Money 1,386 -
Interest [ncome 10 -
Hedging Cost 4 -
M/s Yashrey Rent Expense 103 -
Security Deposit 207
Freshworks Inc Services 39
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Related party disclosures (continued)

Transactions with the related parties during the year are set out in the table below (Contd):

Name of the related party

Nature of transaction

For the yenr ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Luxury Online Retail India Private Limited

Titan Company Limited

Reimbursement of expense - payable

Purchase of goods

Royalty expense

Bad Debt Write off

Other Income

Purchase of capex

Rent and Miscellaneous Income

Reimbursement of Security cost, Encircle and Exgratia

Insurance, Salary and Other Expenses
Interest on Corporate guarantee

“Fransactions with the related partics during the year are set out in the lable below:

89
322

34
14
492

216
91
22
1
50

296

Name of the related party

Nature of transaction

For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

1

Mathrubootham Rathnagirish Sitting fees -
Neelam Chhiber Sitting fees 11 12
Haresh R Chawla Sitting fees 8 6
Bhaskar Bhat Sitting fees 6 7
Sandeep Anant Kulhalli Sitting fees 4 6
Neelam Chhiber Commission to Directors * - 11
Haresh R Chawla Commission to Directors * - 6
Bhaskar Bhat Commission to Directors * -t 8
Sandeep Anant Kulhalli Commission to Directors * . 7
Mathrubootham Rathnagirish Commission to Directors * - 1
Migrogo LLP Reimbursement of expenses/sarvices - Receivable 4 4
+ excludes provision for commission payable to directors for year ended 31 March 2023 amounting to Rs.50 Lakhs
Balances as on balance sheet date
g As at As at
Name of the related party Nature of transaction 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Starfire Gems Private Limited Trade payable 4 40
Trade Receivables - 28
Security deposit 6 6
Titan Commodity Trading Limited Margin Money 1,386 -
Interest receivable 10 -
M/s Yashrey Security deposit 207 -
Titan Company Limited Trade payable 2 93
Royalty Payable 324 172
Trade receivable 32 5
Microgo LLP * Trade payable - 0
Security deposit - 0
Not A Box Reimburseinent of expenses/services - Recaivable - 6

* Represent amount less than 1 lakh

Notes:

a) The above infarmiation has been determined to the extent such parties have been \dentified on the basis of information available w
b) The above figures do not include provisions for encashable leave, gratuity and pe

th the Group and relied upon by the auditors.
nsion, as separate actuarial valuation are not available,
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4
28  Leases
A | 281 A ts recognised in balance sheei
W
. As at As at
Particul Not
arficutars ot 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
) (i) Right-of-use assets 5
- Buildings 20,153 7,417
- (ii) Lease liabilities
™y Non-current 14(ii) 23,099 10,293
Current 16(ii1) 3,363 |.849
~ 26,462 12,142
Ty (iii) Lease receivables
= Non-current 6(ii) 4,698 3,482
Current 10(vi) (49 625
. 5,347 4,107
- 28.2 Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss
[D Particulars Note Asat Asiat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(i) Depreciation and amortisation expense 24 2,570 1,453
W (ii) Interest expense (included in finance cost) 23 1,640 984
(iiii) Interest income on sub-lease (included in other income) 20 553 S66
(iv) Expense relating to short-term leases 25 183 427
' ; (v) Expense relating to variable lease payments 25 17 12
(vi) Rent concessions 25 - (317)
| (a) Short-term lease has been accounted for applying paragraph 6 of Ind AS 116 - lease and accordingly recognized as expenses in the consolidated statement of profit and loss
g p
(b) The total cash outflow for the year ended March 31, 2023 amounts to Rs. 3,005 lakhs (Previous Year : Rs. 3,014 Lakhs)
’.l; 29  Employee benefit obligations
a) Defined contribution plan
) The contributions recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss during the year are as under:
e
Particulars As at As at
. 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
; Employee provident fund (Including Admin Charges) 320 220
7 I

« @

« U v U o

«

~

v & U @

Q)

)

Employee state insurance

b) Defined benefit plan - Gratuity (non-funded)
of employment with the company

The plan typically exposes the company to actuarial risk such as interest risk and salary risk.

A movement in the bond interest rate will impact the plan Hability

Interest risk
Salary risk

participants, as such an increase in the salary of the plan participants and vice-versa

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Under the defined benefit plan, the company provides for a lumpsum payment to eligible employees, at retirement or termination of employment based on the last drawn salary and years

The pre;em_va]ue of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the futurc salaries of ﬁtun

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount rate (p.a.) 7.30% 6.00%
Salary escalation rate (p.a.)
- Corporate 10.78% 10,60%
- Non-corporate 976% 8.56%
- Manufactunng 9.35% 6.97%
Attrition rate
- Corporate 26.67% 26.60%
- Non-corporate 24 00% 25.13%
- Manufacturing 0.67% £.28%|

- The employees of the Company are assumed to retire at the age of 58 years.
- The mortality rates considered are as per the published rates in the Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ult fable,
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29

30

Employee benefit obligations (continued)

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all

other assumptions constant,

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars
Discount rate Escalation rate
Defined benefit obligation when a plus 50 bps for respective rates is applied 854 893
896 857

Defincd bencfit obligation when a minus 50 bps for respective rates is applied

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Particulars
Discount rate Escalation rate
Defined bencfit obligation when a plus 50 bps [or respective rates is applied 614 642
Defined benefit obligation when a minus 50 bps for respective rates Is applied 644 616
. As at As at
Mati fi
aturity profile 31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
Expected benefits for year | 181 139
Expected benefits {or ycar 2 161 114
Expected bencfits for year 3 139 101
Expected benefits for ycar 4 127 86
Expected benefits for year 5 109 74
Expected benefits in next S years 637 371
Camponents of defined benefit costs recogmised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss are as follows:
. As at As at
Particul
il 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current service cost 140 90
Past service cost - -
[nterest on nel defined benefit liability 34 19
Total expense charged to the consolidated statement of profit and loss 174 110
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprchensive income arc as follows:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
107 137

sRemeasurements during the year

The scrvice cost and the net interest expense for the year are included i the ‘Salaries, wages and bonus' line item in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. The remeasurement of
the net defined |iability is included in other comprehensive income The amount included in the consolidated balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined

benefit plans is as follows:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening defined benefit liability 629 410
Expense charped to consolidated statement of profit and loss 174 110
Amount recognised outside the consolidated statement of profit and loss account 107 157
(36) (48)

Employer contributions
Closing defined benefit liability 874 619

¢} Compensated absences

This provision covers the Company's liability for eamed Jeave.
Provision as at March 31, 2023 amounting to Rs. 130 lakhs (2022: Rs. 118 lakhs) is presented as current, since the Company bascd on past experience does nol expect all cmployees to
avail the full amount of accrucd leave or require payment for such Icave within the next 12 months.

Similar assumptions have been made as per the defined bencfit plan.
The service cost and the net interest expense for the year arc included in the ‘Salaries, wages and bonus'
is included in other comprehensive income. The amount included in the consolidated balance shect arising

line item in the statement of profit and loss. The remeasurement of the net linbility
from the entity's obligation in respect of its compensated absences is as follows:

Particulars At GE
31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Compensated absences
Non-current - 175
Current 389 118
389 203

Segment reporting
The Chief Operating Decision Maker ((CODM') evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on analysis of various performance indicators by industry classcs
Accordingly, segment information has been presented for industry classes. The operating scgment has been identificd to be "Jewellery" as the CODM reviews business performance at an
overall Company level as one segment

o
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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31

32

33

(a)

(b)

()

Contract asset and liability
Contract asset represents the amount of goods expected to be received by the Company on account of sales return. Thus, it represents the value of sales the Company estimates to be

returned on account of sales return

Nature As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Contract liability
Opening balance 382 274
Less: Provision reversed towards sales retums (382) (274)
Add: Provision towards sales return created 512 182
Closing balance 512 382
Contract assets
Opening balance 264 197
Less: Provision reversed towards sales retums (264) (197)
Add: Provision towards sales return created 339 264
Closing balance 339 264)
Commercial paper
The following tables set forth, for the period indicated, details of commercial paper:
March 31, 2023
Maturitics (-1 Month 1-3 Months 4-6 Months
Face value E 21,500 -
Carrying value ' 21,262 -
The following tables set forth, ratings assigned by credit rating agency at March 31, 2023
Instrument ICRA CRISIL

Commercial paper ICRA[ATH] CRISIL AA/ Positive

Contingent liabilities and commitments

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

- Guarantces excluding financial guarantees

- Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:
Sales tax matters

- Other money for which the Company is contingently liable

677 102

Out of the above claim of Rs. 677 lakhs, the contention of the Company to the department was that it had paid Rs, 615 lakhs by way of not transitioning to the GST regime, which agam
was mentioned by the principal commissioner in his demand order It is on the ground of non submission of back up documents, the above demand was raised. Further. the Company had
taken certification from a Chartered Accountant on such non-transitioning of CENVAT credit to GST regime,

The above amounts are based on the notice of demand or the Assessment Orders or notification by the relevant authorities, as the case may be, and the Company is contesting these
claims with the respective authorities, Outflows, if any. arising out of these claims would depend on the outcome of the decisions of the appellate authorities and the Company's rights for
future appeals before the judiciary. No reimbursements are expected,

The Supreme court of India in the month of February 2019 had passed @ judgement relating to definition of wages under the Provident Fund Act,1952. However, considering that there
are numerous mterpretative issues relating to this judgement and in the absence of reliable measurement of the provision for the earlicr periods, the Company has made a provision [ur
provident fund contribution bascd on it's interpretation of the said judgment. The Company will evaluate its position and updatc its provision, if required, on recetving [urther clarity omn
the subject. The Company does not expect any matcrial impact of the samne

Duning the previous year, the Company received Show Cause Notice (*SCN’) dated 28 March 2022, from the office of the Directorate of Enforcement, Government of India (*DOE")
alleging that the Company reccived Foreign Direct Investment (‘FDI’) during the year(s) 2011 to 2014 in licu of issuc of shares to overscas investor, which was utilised i Single Brand
Retail Trading activitics without prior approval from the RBI. The show-cause notice pertained to an alleged violation of FEMA Rules as Foreign Direct Investment in single-brand retail
was not permitted under automatic route in above stated periods.

The Company. bascd upon the management briefing, approached a former Chief Justice of India who had opincd that CaratLane was not in violation of the FEMA rules as at the relevant
period, it was only engaged in B2B sales and was not in retail rade, Furthermore, during the year, the Company filed detailed reply to the DOE with clarification vide their letter dated
Qctober 28, 2022 Thereafter the Company also preferred a Writ Petition bearing No. 30893 of 2022 (“Wril Petition™), filed before the Hon'ble High Court of Judicature at Madras
(‘How’ble Court’), challenging the SCN and proceedings before DOE, The samc was heard by the Hon'ble Court on November 21, 2022, and DOE was directed to file a counter-
affidavit as its response, within 4 weeks, However, as on date, no response has been filed by DOE and the time period for filing the sume has also lapscd. Thelisting of the matter far
hearing before Hon’ble Court has not been notificd till date

Based or the legal opinion received and its assessment of transactions and provisions of FEMA Rules for the years under consideration, the Management considered that no provision is
required to be carried in the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023 in rclation to the above matter. The Management would evaluate this position in subsequent wears,

based an outcome of proceedings before the Hon'ble Court and DOE
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34 Finuncial instruments
34,1 Categories of finunclal instruments

Finunciul avsels

Particulars

Aval
31 March 2023

Ak at
31 March 2022

& Muaigred al amaortived cost

- Loans to el = (Refer note 10(v) 198
_ Security ml ibier deposils (Refer note 6(iii) and note 10(vi)) 1,264
- Trade reecivables (Refer note 10Gi) 1,057
- Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 10(iii)) 592
- Other hank balances (Refer note 10¢iv) 178
_ Lease receivables (Refer note G(iii) and note 10(w1)) 4,107
£ her nanainl seects (Relks potd &) lind note L) e
Tutal Financial wsawts meisured ut winortised coid 3087
Tutul finnsicial T
Financial

- Asat Avat
Pariicutars 31 March 2023 31 March 2021
i aured wl falr value through profil or o ("FVTFL"}

Chedd on Lot il El ] 23615
Tistal financial ahilities measured ut FVTEL (w) 20,931 23,643
. Mensurcd at smortised cost
- Borrow inas. 56712
- Rental depasits 162

19,555
26,462
- Ciher Tinmnca] linbilites 1,f%4
Tirtal i Ll llaks o meavuredl at amitised cost 104,781
Tt} fnancinl labilities (0 45 125,711
34,2 (i) Fuir value hlerarchy
This note explains ahoul hasis for determination of fuir values of various [inancial assets and liabilitics:
Particulan el 1 Level 2 Leveld Tobul
Financiul assels and liabi + measurce al fair value - March 51, 2013
Financiul liabilitics
< Clnlad Wlan 20,81) - - 20,931

Tutal finapgisl ancti Ml - - i 531
Parifialars Lewel | Lesid 2 Level 3 Taial
Financlal assets anif fiahilitles messnred an fufr value - March 31, 2022
< glabd boan pajiis] 13443
Tutal finuncial usscts 23,643 - 13,643

Level 1. Lesel | hitturchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices This includes fisted equity nstruments, mutual funds
+=pesting period. The mulual funds are valued using the closing nct asset value

prce at

entity-specific cstimates 1l significant inputs required o fa value an instrument arc ohservable, the instrument 15 included in lewel 2

(ii) Vauluation technigue used fo defermine fui value

Specilic value technigues used to value financial instruments wclude

- the use of quated market prices for listed instruments.

e Farr salue of remaining inanel instruments 15 determined using discounted cash flow analysis

(iif) Fair value of finunciul assels und financiul liubilities tha( ure not messured at fair valuc (but fair value disclosurcy are required)

The carymg vahies of (inancial assets and liahilitics approximate the fuir values

The fiir value ofall cquity instruments that ar traded in the stock exchanges 15 valuad using the closing

Level 2: The it value of Gnancial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for cxample: Over-the-counter derivalives) 1 determinead using valualion tcchmiques which muimize o

Level 3: ([ ane or more of the signilicant inputs is nol based on observable market dats, the instrument 1s ineluded in level 3 This s the case of unlisted instruments, deposits, cmployee loans cte

he use of abservable data and rely as lille as possible on

e -
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Financlal Instruments {continued)

Credit risk

Cradit risk vefees b thse rirk thal the eoutsérparts will default oe its evatracnal obligatisni ceatlting i Mnscial ko o the Corpsiy. The Commpany deals mugerly with ereditworthy comterparies and ohlaims ssiTicset collstersl, e appropriae
a1 4 means of initfgsting he sk of firencial loas from defaulls, Creds) nak i mannged by the Company thresigh apprerved eredit nanms, evtahlish it imtits wpyl } i the tred st o extstomer i which the Colnpany
e credif fettine b thee il stirse of biness O dicatnl of uiloption e Ind AS 108, the Comipany uaes expeeial erodit bous imidel 20 iness the epiinsent Joss. Credit prk arvees principatly from the Coenpmy’s naceivables from emsdmers

Crradid risk ont Tquish fande i Taited bocnune he eotinterpariies i barkn. Refer note 104D for the disglosuncy for tradis fecsivables

Liquidity rirk

The Cumpany invests its surplus funds from time-to-lime in various short-term i Serimity of funds and liquidity shall he the primary consideration while deciding on the type of invesiments. The Company manages liquidily risk by
maiftiinig =lequate reserves, hanking fucilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuniialy munitaring forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assels and liabilities. The company cxpecls o meet ils
other obligations (rom operating cash flows and proceeds of maturing linancial assets

Lisgudality elak tables
The faltowing tabide below analyses the Company’s financial liahilities into relevant maturity groupings hased on their maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities that are net setiled

The Lables hane becn drsum on o undiscounted basis based on the carlicst date on which the Company can be required to pay

Particulurs Axai Anat

31 Muarch 2023 31 Murch 20122
Secured bank sverdraftitorm loan fcility, payahlc
- amounl used 35450 3.508
- amount unused B.194 4,992
Sccured gold on loan facllity, payable
- amount used 20.931 23,643
- nmount unuscd 6,644 10,357

L t aumil Inderes alife

“The following tables details the Company's remaining contsactual maturity for its non-derivativ financial Tiabilities with agreed repayment peniods: The tables have boen dravn on un undiscounted cash flows of linuncial liabilitics ba<ed on the
carlicst date on which the Company can be required to pay

Contractusl muturities of financial llabilltles Less than 3 months > 3 monthsy Tutal

As at 31 March 2023
Non-derivative

- Securily deposits 33 362

- Bormowings 0 56712

- Trade payables 912 19.555

- Gold laan 8310 20931

- Lease liahilitics 25647 26,462

- iy finapeial skl 2 10

Total nan-derivative lshilitics 35238 125711

C | maturities of financhal liabiliti Lesy than 3 months >3 months Tutal

As al 31 March 2022

Non-derivailve

- Security deposits 20 292 32

- Borrowinas 17.730 643 18373

- Trade payables 16,681 592 17273

- Gold laan 8384 15.259 2643

- Leasc linbilities 1387 10.755 12142

- Ot i) linhlities 21 433 LITd
44,473 26,404 0T

« This page has intentionally boen left blank®
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Financial ins(ruments (continued)

W

Market risk

“The market risks to which The Group is exposed are price risk and foreign currency risk

Price risk

The Group is exposed lo ions in gold price (includ ions in forcign currency) arising on purchasc/ sale of gold

+ociatéd with gold price fluctuations relating to all the highly probable

To manage the varubility in cash flows, The Group enlers into derivative finaneitl m:truments to mansge the i

gold at any time during the tenor of the loan

e
L4
‘T' The use of such derivative financial instruments is governed by The Group's policics approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written principles on the usc of such instruments consistent with The Group's risk management stmiegy
As the value of the derivative instrument generally changes in response ta the valuc of the hedged item, the cconomic relationship is etablished
4 The following table gives details o contracts as at the end of the reporting period:
T
Particulars Nature of Hedge Avernge rute Quantity of hedge
{Per gram) Instruments  Nominal amount
L. T March 2001 Fair Vialue 5339 384 20602
1 Fase Valie Ak 11 Sl

11 Morcl 3
—_—

Cash Mow hidpe

The Grmae nssewies th effotiveness of its designated halpes by using the same hnlge tatia as thal
pebulimend, v equired (e, when the hedge ratio for sk musspesmenl purpeoes 11Dt Jomger optimal bt tfes 177k management objective remains unchanged and the hedge continues to qualify for hedge seeonnly
the hedged item snd the hedging instrument.

Sources of hedge i i inclwle mi h in the weightings of the hedged item and the hedging instrument and Lhe selling mte

G U G

The line item in the consolidated batance sheet fhal i luide the sbove hedging instramesit uti olfict [inancisl assets and other financial listikitz=s
As at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 the igzregi amount of gains under forwarl crmilracts is ised in “Other Compchersl
in e folliw

For the yeur ended For the year ended

Particulurs
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

<

Balance at beginning of the year (nct of taxes)
Changes in fair vaiue of effective portion of cash flow hedges
Cumulative gain/(loss) arising on changes in fair value of cash flow hedges reclassified 1o consolidated statement ol profit ond loss - i)

Balance at end of the year (net of taxes) = =

Fair value hedge

W

The Lirmt desdznies derive antructs as hedging Instiumeniy (o mitigate the risk of change in foir value of hedged item duc to movement in gold prices. Changes in the
qualify an firir valus hedges ame rec cileid in the Statemesit of [rofil and Loss. Therefore, there will he no impact of the fluctuation in the price of the gold on the Group's profit for the period
IS

The table helow shows the position of hedging instruments and hedged items as on the halance sheet date:

G

As it Murch 31, 2023
Commodity price risk

Tphet of falr Disehsore iy bulinee
walue hedpe alicid
20,692 Imvertimes

Currylng value ol A
Huedging instrument Maturiy date

Hedged ftem
Flatpid ttem = fived golil 20,692

2 months

(&‘7

As at March 31, 2022

Carrying value of Muturity dte Impuct of fair  Disclosure in balance

Commodity price risk ezl Jtem Headging instrument vabi hedjre sheet

T Ipsendorws

i
]

Hedged item - fived gold
Hedging instrument - derivatives - 1 2 months (2) Other financial assets/
other liabilities

O W

Foreign carroney risk management

The Grolp s frestgin exchangs il ariing ihooith its salis nd purchises shemomnated in Antions [orvigs sumenyet

A1) Thee make v 1 wrising on heceunt i plrchzsel aabeof gold b cosured b

{1 I respes it CIRTENSY, COMTAETS g i \ the comaliditid slztinent of profit and loss

1Tt waerying wie

O

o fiagn oammemey evelnhps Moot

apvd at fvir value i

sl puarchinse end sale franaictiond derotnlnated iz

kol thi Corripiny's farign euirency msminutid mmetry seks ol monetary Fintilities o the eml of the rperting vearars i Fallow

Tiahifiiis ws at - Avehs ol
Currency
= 31 Murch 2023 31 March 201231 March202) 31 Murch 2123
HE ] 161 3z [

epresent anient led tan | e

&

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Lot is initinly e5poned i USD. The Group's sty fon |5 ibscrease wich dectraes in Uve PNTL sgnisat e relevarit fifeeign currenciol 11 pre wemid below.
The sensifivity mraby o fmehies only ectetinling fareign ctrroney denemitiatid menebiry i sl aejustp thar trunslation a1 the perind eml-fora 1Y
v Fora 1% weakerung of the TNR agaimt thie relievenl curpeney, e siold be neotmpaimhie dectoass m profit or equity

u;

the [® 2 the relcvahil cim

tringtien 1% i

In management’s opinion, Lhe itivity analysis is D ive of the inherent foreign cxchange risk hecause the expasure at the end of Lhe reporting perind docs not reficet the exposure during the year

35  Estimated smount of contracts remaining lo be executed on capital account and not provided for is Rs 1,048 lakhs (Previous year: Rs 155 lakhs)

'S

by been et hlank®

* This peige hi inte

instruments are prirese{ly int the nature of future commodity contracts and fiward [oweign exchange contracts. The risk msmag=tient stategy sgainst gold price Mfuctution also includes pracuring gold on loan hasis, with a flexilility 1 fix price of’

resiilfisig frin the quantities of the hedged item and he hedging instrument that The Group actually tsee. Haicvar, thix hedge putio will be
-y wddiintimg v ghtings of

« Income” and accumulated in the cash flow hedging resenve Delails of movements in hedging reserve

fair value of hedging instruments and hedged items tha are designated and

 chusge n foreign currency rates There is an increase in profit of equity by Rs 8 lakhs where
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The Group has incorpanuted a subsidiary namely StudieC Inc on |1 February 2021 In the current financial year Carutlune made an insestment of'$ 1,50,000 in SwdioC

36
The subsidinry eompany which 15 included in consolidation and the Compuny's holdings therein 1s as under
" . Holding %a Halgling %% Hurlilbiig ~» Halding %
subs v Country ol
Nume of the subsidiary ‘ountry of incorporatlon 31 March 13 31 Muech 23 31 Murch 22 31 March 22
St e Ulrised Seites 100%% ([LE) 100% Hirs
Additiona informatlon pursusnt (o para 2 of gencrul instructions for the prep ion of C liduted Finnnclal
Additional imformation as required by Parugraph 2 of the General [ ions for Prey ofC lidated Financiul to Schedule 11} (© the 2013 Act
As at March 31, 2023 Ay at Murch 31, 2022
Name of the Entity Net assets, Le., totul assets minus total liabilitics Consolldated profit it ety ""'"':."'}:I:‘i: in i total Consalidated profit
v
Asa % of Ana
Asatsal sted
2Baliled ik ilicouic Amount consnlidtid Amount comsallilated net Amaunt ottppolliated Amount
macts prafit
wrofit uErEls
Parent 1 Carailabi: Trading Privaly Listited 116% 111 125% 10,229 108% [} Pre 4 111% GNTY
Subsidinry StudioC Tne -15% 279N -24% {2001 £% (691 9% (791
dil nrising out of lid ol L262Y s [P}] 2% (ExV]] Fel ] [LEAL]
100%% 19002 10a%s N20K 1T 402 UE'\'- #3929
An al March 31, 2023 As 8t March 31, 2022
Sami of the Entity Share in other comprehensive income Total comprehensive income Share in other comprehenslve Income Total comprehensive Income
As % of intal As % of
As % of consolidated other other canyolidated other As % of total ather
N Amount Amount Amount A Amount
comprehensive income comprehensive comprehensive comprehensivi
e bmeame
il e Truding Private Limiled 43% (L] 127 10,149 100% i 9 TR
ary StudicC Inc 51% {105) =26% (2,106} - - et
L aasing out of lidati 0% - 0% [4)] - - (LR
100% (185) 10T AR (103) KT
37 Other sintutory infarmation :
(i) The Group dues not have uny Benumi property or any proceeding which is pending agaiast the Group for holding any Benam property
(1) The Group Jo not huve any transactions with companies struck ali,
(i) The Group do not have any charges or <atisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrur of Companies beyond the stututory period
(1%) The Group has nol traded or invested in erypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year
(1) The Group 1s not classified as willful defuulter
(vi) The Group doesn't have any transaction which 1s not recorded in the books of sccounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the (ax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 such as search or survey
L) N funds have been advanced or laaned 1 <fed (cither from borrowed funds o share premium o by Uther soiizces or kind of funds) by the Group i o6 1n any other person(s) 1 atity11), including foreign entities (°1 dianwes™), with the sl g
whietlie= recorded it writing or otherwise, that the Inteririestiary shall, sfuves]y or indirectly lend or invest i other persons v entities ideniifis i uny mannie whalsesver by a1 s behall of the i ¢*Ulumate Beneficiaries™ or provide any guarantee, seeunty of (he il
an behulf of the Ultimate Bencficiarics
(i) N funds have heen recetved by the Group from any person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities (*Funding Partics”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or others ise, that the Grou shall, dircetly er undircetly, Jend or ymvest in uther persons o
entitics identificd 1n any manner whatsoever by or an hehalf of the Funding Party (- Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guaruntee, security or the like en behulf of the Ultimate Bencficiaries
38 Capital management

++ In urder o majuin the capital structure, the
's sharehalders For the purpose ol ific:

The Chrmap's policy i itisintain a sable and strong capital structure with i focus mm Totul cquity s i i maysis Y330, erediior wnd market confidence snd 10 smstatn future development and growth of |is |s
Growp somions the fetom on capitil, a0 well #0 level of dividends to equity shareholders The Group aims & manage il capilal efficiency s ar i safeguard i ehility to contmue i i going enzett and 1 apitindse retumns 1o all
uind ill other cquity reserves and debl i+ included as 4 part of borrowings and gold Toar

Citisufs Caprion] management, capital s lades sted e

Particulars Aah Auab
31 Murch 2023 31 March 2022
Tiwnl et * 56712 14373
Linal ety 19,002
Fhl by eaubtv el it

* Tolal debt includes only borrowings Gold on loun and lease liabilities has nol been cansidered for the purpose of above
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